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2024
73,963,800 100.13
95,583 0.13
73,868,216
( 11,184 ) 100.00
2024

Luminis 11
Limited 0%
07/23/2025

0| 2025/ /23| 71,559,530 | 69,527,239 | 65,849,080 |89.14

Luminis 11
Limited 0%
07/23/2025/AUD/

0| 2025/ /23| 13,388,870 | 9,314,826 | 8,114,720 [10.99

2024

2024
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2024

(2020 12 ) 155,694,127 23,574 9.99 1,513 10.02 988
(021 12 ) 109,533,092 16,584 9.64 1,460 9.50 937
(2022 12 ) 78,428,757 11,875 8.83 1,337 8.82 870
(2023 12 ) 75,441,733 11,423 9.16 1,387 9.14 901
2023 78,862,984 11,941 8.97 1,358 9.01 888
78,055,137 11,818 8.94 1,354 8.87 875

77,938,279 11,801 8.90 1,348 8.88 876

76,303,920 11,553 8.94 1,354 8.96 884

75,469,561 11,427 8.93 1,352 8.98 886

74,921,838 11,344 8.92 1,351 8.96 884

10 74,105,819 11,220 8.93 1,352 8.92 880

11 74,458,599 11,274 9.06 1,372 9.04 891

12 75,441,733 11,423 9.16 1,387 9.14 901

2024 75,006,145 11,357 9.20 1,393 9.19 906
73,975,724 11,201 9.20 1,393 9.21 908

73,868,216 11,184 9.22 1,396 9.24 911
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14,023,532.016
(14,023,532.016)

603,955.703
(603,955.703)

13,419,576.313
(13,419,576.313)

0.000
(0.000)

3,298,631.310
(3,298,631.310)

10,120,945.003
(10,120,945.003)

0.000
(0.000)

2,185,079.003
(2,185,079.003)

7,935,866.000
(7.935,866.000)

0.000
(0.000)

608,450.312
(608,450.312)

7,327,415.688
(7.327,415.688)

3,069,022.042
(3,069,022.042)

254,532.413
(254,532.413)

2,814,489.629
(2,814,489.629)

0.000 1,075,993.961 1,738,495.668
(0.000) (1,075,993.961) (1,738,495.668)
0.000 343,122.728 1,395,372.940
(0.000) (343,122.728) (1,395,372.940)
0.000 60,458.017 1,334,914.923
(0.000) (60,458.017) (1,334,914.923)
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328

23 103

2024 29
151.41
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2023 12 31
DMS 2020 07
2023 12 31
2,6,12
75,487,222 11,429,520
3 76,691 11,612
75,563,913 11,441,132
75,441,733 11,422,633
16 75,441,733 11,422,633
6
5 33,755 5,111
5 47,104 7,132
4 41,321 6,256
122,180 18,499
75,563,913 11,441,132
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DMS 2020 07
7,327,416 1,334,915
67,111,864 10,161,407 8,329,869 1,261,225
9.159 1,387 6.240 945

116/290



EDINETOOOO
OO000oOO00o0DO000Do00D00o0DO000DO0o0no(Ess?72)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2022 12 31
DMS 2020 07
2022 12 31
2,6,12 78,322,261 11,858,774
3 167,401 25,346
8,927 1,352
13,463 2,038
78,512,052 11,887,510
78,428,757 11,874,898
16 78,428,757 11,874,898
5 35,398 5,360
5 10,019 1,517
9 11,499 1,741
4 26,379 3,994
83,295 12,612
78,512,052 11,887,510
DMS 2020 07
9 7,935,866 1,395,373
16 70,078,803 10,610,632 8,349,954 1,264,267
8.831 1,337 5.984 906
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2023 12 31
DMS 2020 07
2023 12 31
4,150 628
2 3,370,326 510,301
3,374,476 510,929
5,14 (407,182) (61,651)
5,14 (115,240) (17,448)
5
11 (33,686) (5,100)
(556,108) (84,200)
2,818,368 426,729
10
2,818,368 426,729
2,818,368 426,729
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2022 12 31
DMS 2020 07
2022 12 31

2,846 431

52,846 8,001
2 (8,441,736) (1,278,163)
(8,386,044) (1,269,731)
5,14 (489, 659) (74,139)
5,14 (138,583) (20,983)

5

11 (54,217) (8,209)
(682,459) (103,331)
(9,068,503) (1,373,062)
(9,068,503) (1,373,062)
(9,068,503) (1,373,062)
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2023 12 31
DMS 2020 07
2023 12 31
78,428,757 11,874,898
(5,805,392) (878,994)
2,818,368 426,729
75,441,733 11,422,633
2022 12 31
DMS 2020 07
2022 12 31
109,533,092 16,584,405
(22,035,832) (3.336,445)
(9,068,503) (1,373,062)
78,428,757 11,874,898
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2023 12 31

DMS

2023 12 31

2,818,368

605,516

(3,975,842)

6,205,365

8,927
13,463
(1,643)
37,085

14,942

Ooooooooooooooooooad

2020 07

426,729

91,681

(601,982)

939,554

1,352

2,038
(249)

5,615

2,262

5,726,181

867,001

(5,816,891)

(880,735)

(5,816,891)

(880,735)

(90,710)

(13,734)

167,401

25,346

76,691

11,612
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2022 12 31

DMS

2022 12 31

(9,068,503)

1,987,886

6,453,850

22,774,302

123,044
59,568

(14,046)
(3,975)

(13,557)

Ooooooooooooooooooad

2020 07

(1,373,062)

300,986

977,177

3,448,257

18,630
9,019
2.,127)

(602)
(2,053)

22,298,569

3,376,226

(22,156,175)

(3,354,666)

(22,156,175)

(3,354,666)

142,394

21,560

25,007

3,786

167,401

25,346
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2023 12 31
1990
2020
35
2023 12 31
DMS 2020 07 2020 28
DMS 2103 2021 30
One-Day 2023 12
DMS 2020 07
2020 28
2025 25
DMS 2103 10
2021 30
2031 31
One-Day 10 2023 12

2033 31
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102
FRS102
1990
FRS102
AIFM
12
FRS102
AIFM
12
DMS 2020 07
DMS 2103
One-Day

2023

)
)
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1AS39
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2023 12 31 2022 12 31
DMS 2020 07
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
7,645 31,504
(613,161) (2,019, 390)
(605,516) (1,987,886)
(121) (159, 056)
3,975,963 (6.,294,794)
3,975,842 (6,453, 850)
3,370,326 (8,441,736)
DMS 2103
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
2,363 23,622

(1,348,724)

(3.769,247)

(1,346,361)

(3,745,625)

(302) 423
3,856,308 (25,299,925)
3,856,006 (25,299,502)
2,509,645 (29,045,127)
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One-Day

2023 12 31

103,127

(2,435)
197,237

(199,917)
33,969
131,981

942,629
971,973
1,914,602

2,046,583
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1997 739

1997 739

1997

DMS 2020 07
2023 12 31

188

BNP 21,537
JP 54,966
76,691

2022 12 31

230
57,488
109,683
167,401
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One-Day

JP
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2103

2020 07

2103
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2023 12 31

217
9,385
56,107
65,709

2022 12 31

430
38,012
163,340
201,782

2023 12 31

1,515
37,013
38,528

2023 12 31 2022 12 31

35,550 25,711
637 668
5,134

41,321 26,379

2023 12 31 2022 12 31

845,024 681,506
1,124 736
4,027 44,755

850,175 726,997




One-Day
0.15
2020 07
155,000
2023 12
2020 07
138,583
DMS 2103
12 31 156,105
One-Day
DMS
DMS 2103
One-Day
2023 12 31
2020 07
489,659 33,755
2103
551,571 34,196
Day 120,239
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2023 12 31
6,630
11
3,012
9,653
DMS
DMS 2103
125,000 One-Day
31 DMS
115,240 2022 12 31
47,104 2022 12 31 10,019
123,163
74,975 2022 12 31 11,036
46,713 46,713
2020 07
0.80
DMS
407,182 2022 12
2022 12 31 35,398
435,175 2022
2022 12 31 38,992
39,178
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10 0.04 15
0.035 25 0.03
0.01
2023 12 31
DMS 2020 07
7,685 2022 12 31 9,239 637 2022 12 31 668
DMS 2103
8,211 2022 12 31 10,407 1,124 2022 12 31 736
One-Day 1,503 11
36,943 2022 12 31 22,855
DMS 2020 07
25,000 DMS 2103
125,000 One-Day 165,000
DMS
2103 0 2022 12 31 0 One-
Day 145,000
2023 12 31 DMS 2103
57,231 2022 12 31 125,566 One-Day
130,447 2023 12 31
DMS 2020 07

2022 12 31 15,454
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DMS 2103
2023 12 31 DMS
2103 163,519 2022 12 31 380,553
845,024 2022 12 31 681,506
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
DNS DNS one-b
2020 07 2103 e-vay
2023 12 31 2023 12 31 2023 12 31
59,636,333
75,487,222 83,860,833
943,860
75,487,222 83,860,833 60,580,193
1,231
1,231
DNS DNIS
2020 07 2103
2022 12 31 2022 12 31
78,322,261 84,842,688

78,322,261 84,842,688
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One-Day
943,860 (1,231) 942,629
59,636,333 59,636,333
60,580,193 (1,231) 60,578,962
1,231 (1,231)
1,231 (1,231)
2022 12 31
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
DMS 2020 07 DMS
2103
10 150,000
10 200,000
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0.01 0.01
One-Day
10 150,000
10 150,000

1,000 150,000,000

1,000 150,000,000

0.01

135/290



EDINETOOOO
OO000oOO00o0DO000Do00D00o0DO000DO0o0no(Ess?72)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

DMS 2020 07
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
7,935,866 1,395,373 10,120,945 1,738,496
(608,450) (60,458) (2,185,079) (343,123)
7,327,416 1,334,915 7,935,866 1,395,373
DMS 2103
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
10,802,722 1,238,393 12,726,668 1,504,927
(432,208) (8,957) (1,923,946) (266,534)
10,370,514 1,229,436 10,802,722 1,238,393
One-Day
2023 12 31
2,359,703 227,292 4,214,764 1,135,470
(30,536) (423,334)
2,329,167 227,292 3,791,430 1,135,470
2023 12 31 DMS
2020 07 0 2022 12 31
11,499 DMS 2103
7,430 2022 12 31 2,193 One-Day 0
10
DMS 2020 07 DMS
2103

One-Day
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2023 12 31 DMS 2020 07
DMS 2103
One-Day 81,820
11
DMS 2020 07
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
26,001 29,282
7,685 9,239
15,696
33,686 54,217
DMS 2103
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
163,519 380,553
8,211 10,407
10,841 37,231
182,571 428,191
One-Day
2023 12 31
9,041
6,630
1,503
3,631
20,805

12.
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2020 07
7,548,722 2022 12 31 7,833,112 DS
8,386,083 2022 12 31 8,484,269
5,963,633 10
(b)
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
©
AIFM AIFMD

AIFM

AIFM

(D
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BBH
BBH BBH
BBH
A+ 2022 12
31 A+
A 2022 12 31 A
2023 12 31
MFS
DOT DOT MFS
UBO DOT
1,000
2023 12 31
BNP
JP
©)

One-Day
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One-Day
A+
Q)
DMS 2020 07
2023 12 31
( ) ( ) ( )
8,485,702 67,078,211 75,563,913
(122,180) (122,180)
8,485,702 66,956,031 75,441,733
2022 12 31
( ) ( ) ( )
8,471,185 70,040,867 78,512,052
(83,295) (83,295)
8,471,185 69,957,572 78,428,757
DMS 2103
2023 12 31
( ) ( ) ( )
6,102,801 77,823,741 83,926,542
(966,776) (966,776)
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6,102,801 76,856,965 82,959,766
( ) ( ) ( )
5,886,269 79,158,626 85,044,895
(779,218) (779,218)

5,886,269 78,379,408 84,265,677
( ) ( ) ( )
1,298,734 60,131,969 61,430,703
(1,231) (725,797) (727,028)
1,297,503 59,406,172 60,703,675
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2020 07
2022 12 31 423,559 DMS 2103
305,140 2022 12 31 294,313
One-Day 64,875
2016 FRS 34.22
GAAP
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2023 12 31 2022 12 31
DMS 2020 07
2023 12 31
75,487,222 75,487,222
75,487,222 75,487,222
2022 12 31
78,322,261 78,322,261
78,322,261 78,322,261
DMS 2103
2023 12 31
83,860,833 83,860,833
83,860,833 83,860,833
2022 12 31
84,842,688 84,842,688
84,842,688 84,842,688

143/290



EDINETOOOO

OO000oOO00o0DO000Do00D00o0DO000DO0o0no(Ess?72)

Ooooooooooooooooooad

One-Day
2023 12 31
59,636,333 59,636,333
943,860 943,860
60,580,193 60,580,193
2023 12 31
1,231 1,231
1,231 1,231
FRS102
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
DMS 2020 07
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
78,322,261 109,538,299
(6,204,569) (22,775,094)
(606,433) (1,986,221)
3,975,963 (6,454,723)
75,487,222 78,322,261
2023 12 31
3,774,361 2022 12 31 3,916,113
DMS 2103
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
84,842,688 132,020,528
(3,490,121) (18,132,975)
(1,348,042) (3,744,521)
3,856,308 (25,300,344)
83,860,833 84,842,688
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2023 12 31
4,193,042 2022 12 31 4,242,134
GS
13.
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
1.4655 1.4746
1.1039 1.0705
140.9800
14.
2023 12 31
2022 12 31 AIFM
IE
IE FRS102
2023 29

2024 29
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15.
IE
16.
FRS102
DMS 2020 07
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
75,441,733 78,428,757
15,454
75,441,733 78,444,211
DMS 2103
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
82,959,766 84,265,677
57,231 125,566
83,016,997 84,391,243
One-Day
2023 12 31
60,703,675
130,447

60,834,122
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17.
One-Day 2023 2023 12
2023 30 2023
29
2023
2023 29
2023 12 31
18.
2024 29
2023 12 31
19.

2024 22
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2023 12 31

DMS 2020 07

2022 12 31 99.86

73,474,130 67,023,101 88.84
13,524,170 8,464,121 11.22
75,487,222 100.06

(45,489) (0.06)
75,441,733 100.00
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Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust
Statement of Financial Position
As al 31 December 2023

DMS Target Maturdty  DMS Target Maturity

Setting Fund 2020.07 Setting Fund 2103
{Tmwvesting in Goldman  {Investing in Goldman U Dhay
Sades Corporate Bonds) Sachs Corporate Bonds) Premidum Fund®
As at As wt As
31 December 2023 31 Idecember 2023 21 Decenaber 223
Noles UsSD UsH UsD
Current Assets
Firancial assets al fair value through
profit or loss 2,612
Total Retum Rasket Swaps - . 50636333
Performance-lmked Notes 75,487,222 83,860,833 -
Unrealised appreciation on Forward
Foreign Currency Contracts - . 243,860
Cash 3 76,691 65,709 38,528
Reeceivable for Fund Units sold - - 73,707
Cither receivable - - 74275
Total Current Assels 75,563,913 H3.926,542 61,430,703
Equity
et assets attributable to Unithelders 75,441,733 82,959 Toi 6, 703,675
Total Equity 16 75,441,733 §2.950, 766 60,703,675
Current Liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or less [
Unrealised depreciation on Forward
Foreign Currency Contracts - . 1.231
Distribution fees payable 5 33,755 34,196 9178
AIFM fees pavable 5 47,104 T4.975 46,713
Organisational expense payable - - 13,448
Fayable for Units repurchased g - 7430 -
Payable for investments purchased 2 - . 616,805
Other payable 4 41,321 850,175 9,653
Total Current Liabilitles 122,180 H66,7Th 727,028
Total Equity and Current Liabilities 75,563,913 83,926,542 61,430,703
*The sub-find lmenched on 12 Septemnber 2023,
13
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Daciiign Envilope 1D, TO9MDFT-BCAE-4 154-00 0383033 21607 54

Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust
Statement of Financial Position (Continued)
As at 31 December 2023

DMS Target Maturity DS Target Manaricy
Serting Fand 2020-07 Setting Fund 2103
{Investing in Godman Sachs {Tnvesting In Goldman Sachs
Corporate Bonds) Corporate Bonds)
TsD AT UsD AlD
Unit Class Uit Clazs Uit Class Umit Class
Number of Units in Issne 9 73217416 1,334,915 10370514 12219436
Mel Asset Value per Unit Class 16 67111, 864 8329865 77,007,888 5951,878
MNet Asset Value per Unit 9159 6.240 7426 4841
Che-Dhay
Prenuium Fund®
Usp USIr JEY JMY
Accumulading Monthly  Acounmalating Manthly
Unii Class Distribution Uit Class Distribastion
Undf Class Undt Class
Mumber of Units in Issne 9 2319167 225292 3791430 1135470
Net Assed Value per Unit Class 16 23,642,483 2,279,803 26,824,812 7,956,557
Met Assed Value per Unit 10151 10030 10735 7.007

*The sub-find lmmdhed on 12 September 2023,

Signed on behalf of Waystone Management Company ([E) Limited

M Jumes Al

Date: 22 May 2024

The accompanving notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

14
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Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust
Statement of Financial Position (Continued)
Az at 31 December 2022

DMIS Target Maturity DMS Target Maturity
Seiting Fund 2020.07 Setting Fund 2103
{Investing in Goldman Sachs  (Investing in Goldman Sachs
Corporate Bonds) Corporate Bonds)
Asat Asat
31 December 2022 31 December 2022
Notes UsD USD
Cuorrent Asseis
Financial assets a1 fair value through
profit or loss 26,12 78,322 261 84,842 688
Cash 3 167,401 201,782
Receivable for investments sold 8027 -
Other receivable 13.463 425
Total Current Assets 78,512,052 £5.044 805
Equity
Net assets atributable to Unithelders 78.428.757 B4.265.677
Total Equity 16 78,428,757 84,265,677
Current Liabilities
Digribution fees payable 5 35,398 33592
AIFM fees payable = 10,019 11,0346
Payable for Units repurchased & 11,499 2,193
Crther pavabl e 4 26,379 726,997
Total Current Liabilities 83,705 779,218
Total Equity and Current Liabilities 785,512,052 85,044 895
D3NS Target Maturity DMS Targel Maturity
Setting Fund 2020.07 Selting Fund 2103
(Investing in Goldman Sachs  (Investing in Goldman Sachs
Corporate Bonds) Corporate Bonds)
UsD AUD LS ALD
Unit Class Unit Class Unit Class Unlt Class
Number of Unitsin Issue ¥ 7,935,866 1,385,372 10,802,722 1,238,293
Net Asset Value per Unit Class 16 T0,078,803 8,349,954 78,536,002 5,729,675
Mel Assed Value per Unil 8.831 5084 7.270 4.627

Cne-Day Premium Fund launched on 12 September 2023, therefore, there i no comparative information
available,

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial stalements.

15
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Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust
Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the financial year ended 31 December 2023

DMS Target Maturlty DM Targes Maturby

Setting Fund 2020.07 Setting Fund 2103
{Trevesting In Goldman  (Iovesting in G oldoman U Dhay
Sades Corporate Bonds) Sackhs Corporate Bomds) Prenadum Fund*
For the Minaadal year  For the finandal year  For the fnandal period
ended ended ended
31 December 2023 31 December 2023 31 Decambeer 2023
Motes USI vsn usp
Income
Interest income 4,150 3564 18,015
Net gain on financial assels al fair value
through profit or loss 2 3370326 2508645 2046583
Total Net Income 2374476 251320 2.064.598
Expenses
Distribution fees 514 (407,182) 435,175) (120,239)
AIFM fees 514 (115,240} (123 163) (46,713)
Crganisational expenses 5 - - (145,000)
Other expenses 11 {33,686) (182,571} (20,8055
Total Operating Expenses (256, 108) {740, 905) (332,757T)
Met Operating Profit before Finance
Coat and Tax 2818368 1,772,304 1,731,841
Finance Costs
Digtributions 1o Unitholders 10 . (81,8200
Met Operating Profit 2818368 1772300 1,650,021
Tuotal Comprehensive Profit ) 2,815,368 1,772,304 1,630,021

*The sub-find Immched on 12 September 2023,
Income and expenses arose solely from continuing operations.

There are no recognised gains and losses other than those shown in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

The accompanying notes form an integral pan of these financial staements.

L&
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Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust
Statement of Comprehensive Income {(Continued)
For the financial vear ended 31 December 2022

IDMS Target Matuority DMS Target Maturity
Setting Fund 2020-07 Setting Fund 2103
(Investing in Goldman Sachs  (Investing in Goldman Sachs
Corporate Bonds) Corporate Bonds)
For the Mnandal vear ended  For the Mnancial year ended
31 December 2022 31 December 2022
Nodes LS UsD
Income
Interest income 2846 3215
Crther income 52,846 -
Wet loss on financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss 2 (8.441.736) (29045127
Total MNed Loss (8.356.044) {29,041,502)
Expenses
Digtribution fees 514 {AR8 655 (551.571)
AIFM fees 514 (138.583) (156,105}
Organisational expenses 3 - -
Cither expenses 11 (54217 (428191
Total Oper ating Expenses {652,459 {1,135.867)
Net Operating Loss before Finance
Cost and Tax (9. 148, 503) (30,177,769
Wet Operating Loss {9,068,503) (30,177,769
Total Comprehensive Loss (5. 068, 50.3) {30177, 76%)

Cne-Day Premium Fund launched on 12 September 2023, therefore, there is no comparative information
available,

Income and expenses arose solely from continuing operations.

There are no recognised gains and losses other than those shown in the Statement of Comprehensve ncome.

The accompanying notes form an mtegral part of these financial statements.
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Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust
Statement of Changes in Equity
For the financial year ended 31 December 2023

IVMS Target Maturity IMS Target Maturity

Setfing Fund 202007 Setting Fund 2103 One-Day
{Investing b Goldman Sechs (Trvesting in Goldman Sachs Preqalam Fund®
Carporate Bods) Corporate Bonds) For the Mnancial perlod
For the fmandial year ended For the Mnandal year ended ended
31 December 1023 31 December 2023 31 December 2023
Ush USh Ush
Opening Net Assets atiributable to
Unitholders 78,428,757 84265677 N
Proceeds of Units issued - - 62,192 400
Payment for Units redeemexd (5,805,392) (3078211 {3,138.746)
Met imcrease in Met Assets
attributable to Unitholders from
aperations 2,818, 368 1,772,300 1,650,021
Closing Net Assets atiributable (o
Unitholders 75,441,733 82 959 Th6 o, 703,675

*The sub.fimd Immched an 12 September 2023,

The accompanying notes form an imtégral part of these financial statements.

15
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Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust
Statement of Changes in Equity {Continued)
For the financial vear ended 31 December 2022

DMS Target Maturity DMS Target Maturity
Setting Fund 202007 Seiting Fund 2103
{Investing in Goldman Sachs  (Investing in Goldman Sachs
Corporate Bonds) Corporate Bonds)
For the financial year ended  For the financial period ended
31 December 2022 31 December 2022
UsD USD
Opening MNel Assets attributable to
Unithodders 109,533,092 131,832,662
Payment for Units redeemed (22,035,832) (17,385,216
Mel decrease in Net Assels attributable (o
Unitholders from operations (5,068, 503) (30,177,769
Closing Met Assets atfributable to
Unitholders 78,428,757 §4.265.677

Cne-Day Premium Fund launched on 12 Seplember 2023, therefore, there is no comparative information
available.

The accompanying noles form an mtegral part of these financial statements.

12
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Cash Flows fram Operating Activities

Increase in Total Comprehensive (Loss)Profit

Adjusgtiments to reconcile el mcame to net coash
provided by oporating activities:

Met realised foreign exchange losz on financial aseets
and financiad lisbilitics

Met realised gain on Forward Foreign Curmency
Cantracs

Met realised loss on Foreign Currency Translations

Met realised gain on Total Return Bask et Swaps

Wet change in unrealised appreciation on fimancial
assets and liabiltiies o fair value throsgh profit or
logs

Met change in unrealised appreciafion on Todal
Retum Basket Swaps

MNet chmnge in unrealizsed appreciation on Farward
Foreign Currency Coniracts

Sale/{purchase ) of financiml assets and labilities a
fuir vaue through profit or loss

Digributions to Unithalders

Decrense in receivable for mvestimeniz sold

Decreasel (Increase) in other receivable

[Drecrease fIncrease in distribution fee paysble

Inerease in AIFM fec paoyable

Increase in organisdional fee payvable

Inerease in peyable for mvestments purchased

Increaze in other pavable

Net Cash Flow from /{out of) Operating Activities
Cash Flows (out of) from Finandng Activitdes
Digributions to Unitholders

Proceeds of Units izaied
Payment for Units redeemed

Net Cash Flow {out of)Trom Finandng Activities

Net (Decrense) Ineresase In Cash and Cash
Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents of the beginning of the
finmein yearperiod

Cash and Cash Equivalenis at the end of
the Bnancial year/period

*The sub-find Immched on 12 September 2023,

DMS Target Maturlty  DMS Torget Maiardty
Sebting Fumnd 203007 Setting Fund 2103
(lvesting in Gobdman  (Investing in Goldman Ome-Day
Sacha Corporate Fonds) Sachs Corporate Boads) Preminm Fund®
For the financial year  For the finandal year For the Minaoscdial period
emmded ennded ended
31 Decemibver TS 31 December 2023 31 Decenmber 2023
5D (R 1] UsD
1,818,368 1,772,300 1.650,021
605,516 1,346,361 -
" ) {100,692)
" - 2,680
. - (33, 569)
(3,975 842) {3 556,006 -
- - (971,973}
. - (2.629)
6,205,365 3491500 (38,5323 79}
- - 81,820
8927 - -
13,483 423 {T4,275)
(1,643) {4,796 39175
37,083 63,939 46,713
- - 13,448
- - 616,805
14,942 123.178 P653
5,726,151 2.936.901 (5K, 195.599)
a = (81,520
- - 61,45 603
(5.816,801) (3,072,974) (3,138,746)
{5.516,591) (3.072,974) S8.IM.02T
(90,710 {136073) 38,528
167401 201,782 -
Th,691 65,709 35,528

The accompanving notes form an integral part of these financial statements

0
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Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust
Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2022

DBMS Target Maturity DMS Target Maturity
Setting Fund 202007 Setting Fund 2103
(Investing in Goldman Sachs  {Investing in Goldman Sachs
Corporate Bonds) Corporate Bonds)

For the linancial vear ended  For the Minancial vear ended
31 December 2022 31 December 2022

LsD UsD

Cash Flows lrom Operating Activities
Decrease in Total Comprehensive (LossyProfil (5,068, 505) (30,177,765
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash

provided by operating activities:
Net realised Foreign exchange loss on financial

aszets and financal liabilities 1,987 886 3,745,625
Net change in unrealised depreciation on

financial assets and liabiltiies at fair value

through profit or loss 6,453,850 25,299,502
Sale of financial assets amd liabilities @ Fair

vahe through profit or loss 22,774,302 18,132,713
Decrease receivable for mvestments sold 123,044 20,500
(Decrease)lInerease in other receivable 59 568 (425)
Decrease in disinbution fee payable {14,046) (20,987)
Decrease in AIFM fee payable {3.975) {5,939)
{DecreaselInarease in other payable {13.557) 326,168
MNel Cash Flow from Operating Activities 21298 569 173193588
Cash Flows oul of Financing Activities
Payment for Units redeemed (22.156,175) (18371358
MNet Cash Flow out of Financing Activities (22,156,175) (18.371.358)
Met Increase/{Decrease) in Cash and Cash

Equivalents 142,394 (1,051,970)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of

the financial vear 25,007 1,253,752
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of

the: fnancial year 167,401 201,752

Cme-Day Premium Fund lanched on 12 Seplember 2023, therefore, there is no comparative information
available.

The accompanying notes form an mtegral pan of these financial statements.
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Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust
Notes to the Andited Finandal Statements
For the finamcial year ended 31 December 2023

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

Briongloid Brdge Unit Trost (the “Trost™) was constituted as an [rish umbrella Unit Trost orgamsed
by the Manager and the Trustee wnder the Unit Trusts Act 1990 (the “Act™ ) on 3 June 2020, with the
Fegistered Office at 4th Floor, 35 Shelboume Road, Ballsbridge, Dublin 4, Ireland, The Trust is
authorised by the Central Bank of Ireland {the “Central Bank™) as a Unit Trust pursnant to the Act.

The Trust is an umbrella fund which may comprise different sub-funds, respectively (the"sub-fund” or
together, the “sub-funds™) each with one or more Classes of Units. Each sub-fund may be constituted
as an open-ended fund, an open-ended fund with limited liquidity or a closed-ended fumnd.

As at 31 December 2023, the Trust had three sub-fumds in existence:

Commenced Operations

DMS Tamget Mathwity Setting Fund 2020-07 {(Investing in Goldman

Sachs Corporate Bonds) 28 July 2020
DMS Target Maturity Setting Fund 2103 (Investing in Goldman Sachs

Corporate Bonds) 30 March 2021
One-Day Premium Fund 12 September 2023

First two sub-funds offer two Unit Classes, the USD Unil Class and the AUD Unil Class. The third
sub-fand offers four Unit Classes, the USD Accumulating Unit Class, the USD Monthly Distribation
Unit Class (together the "USD Unit Classes"), the JPY Accummulating Unit Class and the JPY Monthly
Distribation Umnit Class (together the "JPY Unit Classes"), The USD Monthly Distribution Unit Class
and the JPY Monthly Distribution Unit Clase (the "Monthly Distribution Unit Classes™) aims o pay
dividends to Umitholders. The Functional Currency of the sub-funds are Umnited States Dollar (U SD™),
as detailed in Note 2 of the financial statements on page 28,

DMS Target Maturity Setting Fund 2020-07 (Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bomds) is a Unit
Trust with a trust temm of approximately five years. The trust term refers to the penod from the
commencement of aperation on 28 July 2020 to Fund Matunty Date (*Maturity Date™ ), The Matuety
Date is 25 July 2025 or such other date a5 may be determined by the Manager and notified to
Unitholders, being the date on which the term of the sub-fimd expires amnd all remaining Umnits are
redeemed.

DMS Targel Matunty Setting Fund 2103 (Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds) 15 a Uit
Tmet with a trust term of approximately ten years. The trust term refers (o the perod from the
commencement of operation on 30 March 2021 to Fund Maturity Date, The Maturity Date is 31 March
2031 or such other date as may be determined by the Manager and notified to Unitholders, being the
date on which the term of the sub-fund expires and all remaining Units are redeemed.

Cme-Day Premium Fund is a Uit Trust with a trust term of approsamately ten vears. The trast term
refers to the peried from the commencement of operation on 12 September 2023 to Fund Maturity Date
(*Matrity Date™), The Maturity Date 15 31 Angust 2033 or such other date as may be determined by
the Manager and notified to Unitholders, being the date on which the term of the sub-fund expires and
all remaining Units are redeemed.
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Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust
Notes to the Audited Financial Statements {Continued)
For the finanmcial year ended 31 December 2023

2. BIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING FOLICIES
The signi ficant accounting policies and estimation techmigues adopted by the sub-funds are as follows:

Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the sub-funds have been prepared in compliance with Financial Reporting
Standard 102: “The Financial Reporting Standard appficable in the United Kingdom and Republic of
Freland’ (“FRS 1027), accounting standards generally accepted in Ireland and Irish statute comprising
the Unit Trust Act. 1990,

The format and certain wording of the financial statements have been adapted from those contained in
FRS 102 so that, in the opinion of the Allemative Investment Fund Manager (the © ATFM™), they more
appropriately reflect the nature of the sub-funds’ business as an investment flunds.

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis. The Directors have made an
nasessment of the Trust's abality to continue as a going concern and are satisfied that the Trust has the
resolrces o continue in operation for a period of at least 12 months from the date of approval of these
financial statements,

The preparation of financial stalements in conformity with FRS 102 requires the use of estimates and
assumptions that affect the amounts reponed in the financial statements and accompanying notes. The
AIFM believes that the estimates utilised in financial statemenizs are reasonable and prodent. Actual
results could differ from these estimates. Please refer to Note 12 (g} for Fair Value Estimation
disclosures.

Investment policy

DME Targes Marurity Serting Fund 2020-07 (Investing fn Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds) and DME
Target Maturity Setting Fund 2103 {Tnvesiing in Goldmean Sachs Corporate Bonds)

In order to achieve its investment oljective, the sub-funds will invest all of the proceeds from the issue
of Units (after deducting therefrom the costs and expenses in connection with the establishment of the
sub-funds and the offering of Units and a reserve for other charges and expenses payvable ont of the
asgels of the sub-funds) in cemain performance-linked notes (the *Notes™ ) to be issued by Luminis 11
Limited, special purpose vehicle domiciledin the Cayman Islands {the “Notes [ssuer” ). Special purpose
vehicles are companies whose purpose is to conduct business such as the issuance of bonds, and are
generally used in the securitisation of assets and the issuance of strucred notes.

The Motes will provide the sub-funds and each Unit Class with the following exposures:

1. Exposure toa porifolio of fixed income instmments {the “GS Bonds™) 1ssued by The Goldman
Sachs Group, Inc (the *GS Bonds Izsuer”) and dencominated in the cumency of the relevant
Class of Units (the “Fixed Portion™); and

2. Exposure toa synthetic portfolio which provides a retwm winch 15 linked to the performance of
a basket of certain investment funds (the * Active Portion” or the * Strategy™ ).

The Strategy consists of four imvestment funds (the "Underying Funds”) having individual strategies
and cash minus necessary costs o compose a basket, and aims for stable excess refums in vanous
environments, The weightings to be allocated to each Underdying Fund will be determined upon launch
in order (o ensure that the nsk level s equally distobuted between the Underlying Funds (the
“Underlying Basket™).
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Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust
Notes to the Audited Financial Statements {Continued)
For the finanmcial year ended 31 December 2023

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Investment policy {(continued)
Cne-Liay Premium Frund

I order to achieve its investment objective, the sub-fund will generally invest all of the proceeds from
the izsue of Units (after deduction of costs and expenses) in one or more total retum swaps {each a
“Total Remrn Swap™ ) to be traded with Goldman Sachs International Bank {the ~Swap Counterparty™ )
pursnant 1o a swap agreement (the * Swap Agreement™ ).

The Total Retum Swap will be a fully-funded swap amd will provide the sub-fund with exposure to the
Strategy, as descobed in the Supplement to the Prospecius dated 9 Aungust 2023, The sub-fund's
gxposure 1o the Total Retwrn Swap will be (i) increased in the event that the sub-fund receives net
subscriptions and (ii ) decreased in the event that the sub-fund receives net redemptions, on a panticular
Subscription Day ( Redemption Day, The performance of the sub-fund will be determined by the
performance of the Stralegy.

In addition to entering info the Total Retum Swap, the sub-fund may hold cash pending investment,
the return of monies to investors or Lo allow the snb-fund to meet cenain ongoing charges and expenses
which may arize in the course of operations of the sub-fund.

The sub-fund may accept collateral in the context of the Total Retun Basket Swap, Such collateral
will be of an appropriate type for the given transaction and the particular connterpany and may be in
the form of cash or debt. For detals of the non-cash collateral received by the sub-fund at the 31
December 2023, refer to Appendix [11to these financial statements.

The Investment Manazer intends (o hedge the foreign currency exposure of the JPY Umt Classes in
order that investors in such classes receive returns substantially in line with that which would be
achieved in the Functional Currency. The financial instruments used to implement such strategies will
be assets / liabilities of the sub-find a5 a whole, However, such transactions will be clearly attnbatable
to the relevant JPY Unit Class and the gaing / losses on and the costs of the relevant fnancial
instruments will accme solely to the relevam JFY Unit Class,

Accounting for Investments

Investment transactions are recorded on a trade date basis. Realized gains and losses on sales of
investments are caleulated on a “first in - first oul” (“FIFO™) basis. The associated foreign exchange
movements between the date of the purchase and the date of the sale of financial assets are mcluded in
net gain on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income.

Valuation of Investments

Cm initial application of FRS 102, in accounting for its financial instniments a reporting entity is
required to apply either a) the full requirements of FRS 102 relating 1o Basic Financial Instruments and
Cher Financial Instruments, b) the recogmition and measurement provisions of TAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recogrition and only the disclosure requirements of FRS 102 relating to Basic Financial
Instruments and Cther Financial Instruments, or ¢) the recognition and measurement provisions of
International Financial Reporting Standard (" [FRS™) 9 Financial Instruments and only the disclosure
requirements of FRS 102 relating to Basic Financial Instruments and Other Financial Instruments. The
snlbe-funds have chosen to implement b the recogrition and measurement provision of IAS 39 Financial
Instnuments: Recogrtion and only the disclosure requirements of FRS 102 relating to Basic Funancial
Instruments and Other Financial Instruments.
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Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust
Notes to the Audited Financial Statements {Continued)
For the finanmcial year ended 31 December 2023

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Valuation of Invesiments (Conflinued)

In accordance with FRS 102 the sub-funds kave clagsified all of its investments as financial asests or
liabilities designated at fair value throngh profit or loss, Investments are initially recozmsed a1 the fair
value of the consideration given, with transaction costs for such instruments being recogmsed directly
in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. Investments are subsequently remeasured at fair value at
the financial year end. Purchases and sales of investments are recognised on trade date — the date on
which the sub-finds commit to purchase or sell the asset.

Foreign exchange hedging may be wilised for the benefit of a panticular Hedged Class and its cost and
related liabilities and’or benefits shall be for the account of such Class only., Accordingly, any
appreciation or depreciation of the Met Asset Value of the sub-funds resulting from expenses, income,
gains and losses that are aitribuiable to any foreizn exchange hedging in respect of a Hedged Class
shall be attributable solely to the Hedged Class to which it relates.

The value of the assets of each sub-finds shall be determined in respect of each Valuation Date as
follows:

{a) secunties, including debt and equity securities, which are quoted, listed or traded on or under
the rules of any market will be valued at the closing bid price as at each Valuation Point. [f the
secunty is normally quoied, listed or traded on or under the rules of more than one market, the
relevant market will be that which Waystone Management Company (IE) Limited (the
“Manager”) determing provides the fairest criterion of value for the security. If prices for a
secunty quoted, listed or traded on the relevant market are not available at the relevant time or
are unrepréesentative in the opindon of the Manager such secunty will be valued ot such value
as will be estimated with care and good faith as the probable realisation value of such security
by the Manager,

(b} any security, including dett and equity secunties, which is not nomally quoted, listed or
traded on or under the rules of a market or in respect of which the Manager determines that
the cloging bid price as set oul above is not representative of its fair market value, will be
valued at its probable realisation value as determined with care and in good faith by the
Manager. The performance linked notes held are priced on a daily basis by a price received
from Goldman Sachs;

{c) derivative instruments incloding swaps, interest rate futures contracts and other financial
futures contracts which are traded on a market will be valued at the settlement price as
determined by the relevant market at the close of busingss on that market on the Valuation
Date, provided that where it is not the practice of the relevant market to quote a settlement
price, orif a seitlement price is not available for any reason, such instruments will be valued
at their probable realisation value estimated with care amd good faith by the Manager. The
Total Retum Basket Swaps are valued using prices provided daily by the Swap Counterpary,
without adjustment.

(dy  credit default swap instruments which are not dealt on 2 market will be valued on each
Valuation Date at the evaluated mean by reference to freely available market gquotations
supphied by an independent pricing agent or a the price obtained from the counterparty or a
party appointed by the Manager. All other derivative instruments which are nod dealt on a
market will be valued on each Valuation Date at the bid price by reference to freely available
market quotations supplied by an independent pricing agent or at the pnce obtained from the
counterparty or a pany appointed by the Manager,
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Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust
Notes to the Audited Financial Statements {Continued)
For the finanmcial year ended 31 December 2023

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Valuation of Invesiments (Conflinued)

(e} Units in collective investment schemes will be valued on the basis of the latest published Met
Assel Value of such Umnits. If such prices are unavailable, the Units will be valued af their
probable realisation value estimated with care and good faith by the Manager,

() assets denominated in 8 cumency other than in the Functional Currency of the relevant sub-
fund shall be convened into the Functional Currency at the rate (whether official or otherwise)
which the Manager deems appropriate in the circumstances;

(2] cash deposits and similar assets will be valued at their face value together with accrued interest
unless in the opinion of the M anager any adjustment should be made to reflect the fair valoe
thereof; and

(k) reabised and unrealized gains and losses on investments represent the difference between
disposal proceeds of valuation and historic cost. Realised and unrealised gains and losses on
investments arising during the financial vear are dealt within the Statement of Comprehensive
Income.

Forward Fordgn Currency Contracts

Cme-Day Premium Fund may enter into Forward Foreign Currency Contract in connection with settling
planned purchases or sales of securities to hedge the currency exposure associated with some or all of
a sub-fund's secunities of as a panm of an investment strategy. A Forward Foreign Currency Contract is
an agreement between two parties to buy and sell a cumency af a set price on a future date. The fair
value of a Forward Foreign Currency Contract fluctuates with changes in foreign currency exchange
rates. Forward Foreign Currency Contracts are marked (o market daily and the change in value is
recorded by the sub-fiund as an unrealised gain or loss, Realised gains or losses equal to the difference
between the value of the contract af the time 1t was opened and the value at the time it was closed are
recorded upon delivery or receipt of the curreney or, if a Forward Foreign Currency Contract is offset
by entering into another Forward Foreign Currency Contract with the same broker, upon settlement of
the net gain or loss,

Offsetting

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the Statement of Financial
Position when there was a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

As of 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022, none of the Anancial assets and liabilities are offset
in the Statement of Financial Position.
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Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust
Notes to the Audited Financial Statements {Continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2023

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Valuation of Investments (Continued)
DMS Target Maturity Setting Fund 202007 (Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds)
Net galn on financal assets at falr value throngh profit or loss

31 December 2023 31 December 2022

UsD UsD
Realised gain on investments and foreign exchange 7,645 31,504
Realised (loss) on investments and foreign exchange (13,161 (2.019.390)
Total net realised (loss) (605,516) {1.987,886)
(Decrease ) in unrealised appreciation on investments (121} (15%056)
Increase/(Decrease) in unrealised depreciation on
mvestments 3975963 (6,204,794
Total net increase’{decrease) in unrealised
appreclation/{depredation) 3975842 {6,453, 850y
Net gain/{loss) on financial assets at Talr value
through profit or loss 3.370,326 (8,441,736}

DMS Target Maturity Setting Fund 2103 (Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds)

Net galn on finandal assets at fair value through profit or loss

31 December 2023 31 December 2022

USD UsD
Realised gain on investments and foreign exchange 2,363 23,622
Realised (loss) on investments and foreign exchange (1,348,724 (3.769.24T)
Total net reallsed (loss) (1,346.361) (3,745,625
(Decrease ) Increase in unrealised appreciation on
investments (302) 23
Increase/(Decrease) in unrealised deprecialion on
investments 3,856,308 (25.299.925)
Total net increase/{decrease) In unrealised
appredation/{depredation) 3,856,006 (25,299 502)
Met gain/(loss) on Minanclal assets at falr value
through profit or loss 2,509,645 (259, 045,127)
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Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust
Notes to the Audited Financial Statements {Continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2023

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Valuation of Investments (Continued)

One-Day Preminm Fund

Net galn on Minancal assets at fair value through profit or loss

31 December 2023

UsD
Realised gain on Forward Foreign Currency Contracts 103,127
Realised (loss) on Forward Foreign Currency Contracts (2.435)
Fealised gain on Foreign Currency Translations 197,237
Realized (loss) on Foreign Currency Translations (199.917)
Realised gain on Total Retum Basket Swaps 33,969
Total net realised gain 131,981
Increase in unrealised appreciation on Forward Foreign
Cumency Contracts 242629
Increase in wnrealised appreciation on Tolal Retum
Basket Swaps 971,973
Total net increase in unrealised appredation 1,914,602
Net gain on financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss 2,046,583

Foregn Exchange Translation

Frnciional and Presentation Curvency

The functional and presentational currency of each snb-fimd is US Dollar (“USD™ ). This is considered
to be the currency of the primary economic environment of each sub-fimd.

Transaciions and Balances

Assets and liabilities denominated in currencies other than the fonctional cumrency of the sub-funds are
translated into the functional currency at the exchange rates mling at the financial year end date.
Transactions in cwrrencies other than the functional currency of the sub-funds are tanslated into the
functional currency at the exchange rates muling at the dates of the transactions. Gaing and losses on
foreign exchange transactions are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income in
determining the result for the financial year. Proceeds from issnance and amounts paid on repurchase
of Units are translated at the rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.

Transaction costs

Financial assets and financial liabilities at fair valoe throngh profit or loss are recognised at fair value,
Transaction costs are expensed in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. Gaing and losses anising
from changes in the fair value of the financial assets or financial hiabilities at fair valoe through profit
of loss category are presented in the Statement of Comprehensive Income in the financial vear in which

they arise.
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Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust
Notes to the Audited Financial Statements {Continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2023

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Receivable for investmen s sold/Payable for investments purchased

Recervable for ivestments sold/Pavable for investments purchased represent pavables for secuniies
purchased and receivables for securities sold that have been contracted for but not vet delivered on the
Statement of Financial Position date.

Expenses
Expenses are recognised on the accral basis.

Net Asset Value Per Unit
The Net Asset Value per Unit is calculated by dividing the Total Net Assets of the sub-finds by the
mumber of Units in issue. All Units are issued and repurchased at this price.

The Units can be put back into the sub-finds at any tme for cash equal (o a proporional share of the
sub-funds' Met Asset Value. The Unit is carried at the repurchase amount which is payable at the
financial year end date if the Umtholder exercised the right to put the Unit back in the sub-finds,

Taxation

Under currend law and practice, the sub-funds qualify as an investment undertaking as defined in
Section T39B of the Taxes Consolidation Act, 1997, as amended. The sub-funds are not chargeable (o
Irish tax on its income or capital gains, However, [nsh tax can anise on the happening of a “chargeable
event”. A chargeable event includes any distribution payments to Unitholders or any encashment,
repurchase, redemption, transfer or cancellation of shares and any deemed disposal of Units for Insh
1 purposes ansing as a result of holding Units in the sub-finds for a pernod of eight vears or more,

No tax will arise in respect of chargeable events in respect of a Unitholder who:

(1) iz an Exempt Irish Investor (as defined in Section 739D of the Taxes Consolidaion Act, 1997,
as amended) who has provided the sub-funds with the necessary signed statutory declarations;
or

(i} is meither Irish resdent nor ordinarily resident in Ireland for tax purposes at the time of the
chargeable event, provided, in each case, that the necessary signed stalwtory declaration in
accordance with Schedule 2B of the Taxes Consolidation Act, 1997, as amended is held by the
sub-funds.

Capital gains and interest received by the sub-funds may be subject to non-recoverable withholding
tax in the countries of origin

3. CASH AND BANK OVERDRAFT

Cash compnses current deposits with banks, Cash equivalents are short-term hughly liquid investments
that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash, are sulject to an insigm ficant nsk of changes

in value, and are held for the purpose of meeting shor-term cash commitments rather than of
investment or other purposes.

DMS Target Maturity Setting Fund 2020-07 (Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds)
31 December 2023

Held by: UsD
BEH 188
BNP Paribas, Pans 21,537
JPMorgan Chase, Mew York 54,566
76,691
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Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust
Notes to the Audited Financial Statements {Continued)
For the financial vear ended 31 December 2023

3. CASH AND BANK OVERDREAFT{Continued)

DMS Target Maturity Setting Fund 2020-07 (Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds)
(Continued)

M December 2022

Held by: usD
BBH 230
AMZ, London 57438
BEVA, Madnd 109,683

167,401

DMS Target Maturity Setting Fund 2103 (Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds)
31 December 2023

Held by: UsD
BEH 217
ANZ, Hong Kong 9385
Sumitomo Mitsmi Trust Bank, London 56,107
65,709

31 December 2022

Held by: USD
BEH 430
ANZ London 38012
BEV A, Madnd 163,340
201,782

One-Day Preminm Fund

31 December 2023

Held by: UsD
BEH 1.515
JPMorgan Chase, New YVork 37013

J8.528

4. FEES PAYABLE
DMS Target Maturity Setting Fund 2020-07 (Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds)

31 December 2023 M December 2022

USD UsD

Professional fees 35.550 25,711
Service expenses 637 668
Miscellaneons expenses 5. 134 -
41,321 26379
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4. FEES PAYABLE (Continued)

DMS Target Maturity Setting Fund 2103 (Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds)

31 December 2023

3 December 2022

UsDr UsD

Fixed operating expenses 845,024 681,506
Service expenses 1.124 T36
Mizcellaneous expenses 4.027 44,755
B3017S T26.997

Ome-Day Preminm Fuand

31 December 2023

UsD

Registration expenses 630
Service expenses 11
Miscellaneons expenses 3012
2653

5. FEES

The fees and charges payable to the Manager and the Investment Manager, which will apply to each
sub-fund or to different Classes of Uit for each sub-fund, are specified in the relevant Supplement.

Management and Investment Management Fees

In respect of itz provision of management services to the sub-funds, the Manager receives a
management fee (the *Management Fee™ ) on a sliding scale at a maximum rate of 0.15% per annum
of the Net Asset Value of the sub-funds. The Management Fee is subject to an annual minimum fee of
USD 125,000 per annum for DM S Target Maturity Setting Fund 2020-07 {Investing in Goldman Sachs
Corporate Bonds) and DMS Target Maturity Setting Fund 2103 (Investing in Goldman Sachs
Corporate Bonds) and USD 155000 for One-Day Preminom Fund, The Management Fee accrues at
each Valuation Point and i paid monthly in arrears together with any reasonable and docimented out
of pocket expenses incurred by the Manager in the performance of its duties that are not covered by
the Management Fee.

The Manager iz responsible for paying the fees and expenses of the Investment Manager, the
Administrator, the Trustee and the Anditor (for the annual andit only). For the financial year ended
31 December 2023, the Manager earned a fee of USD 115,240 (31 December 2022: USD 135,583 of
which USD 47,104 {31 December 2022: USD 10,019) was omtstanding at financial vear end for DMS
Target Maturity Setting Fund 2020-07 (Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds), USD 123,163
(31 December 2022: USD 156,105) of which USD 74,9275 (31 December 2022: USD 11,036) was
outstanding at financial year end for DMS Target Maturity Sstting Fund 2103 (Investing in Goldman
Sachs Corporate Bonds) and USD 46,713 of which USD 46,713 was outstanding at financial period
end One-Day Premium Fund.
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Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust
Notes to the Audited Financial Statements {Continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2023

5. FEES (Confinued)

Distribution Fees

The Manager has appointed SMBC Tmst Bank Lid (the “Distributor”) as the distributor in Japan,
responsible for purchasing the Units from the Manager and completing subscription orders placed by
investors in Japan (only) in accordance with Japanese law. Distribution fees of 0.53% per annum of
Met Asset Value for DMS Target Maturity Setting Fund 2020-07 (Investing in Goldman Sachs
Corporate Bonds) and DMS Target Matunty Setting Fund 2103 (Investing in Goldman Sachs
Corporate Bonds) and 0.80%% per annim for One-Day Premium Fund are payable o the Distributors
om a per Unit basis. For the financial year ended 31 December 2023, the Distribution fee incurred was
USD 407,182 (31 December 2022: USD 489,65%) for DM3 Target Maturity Setting Fund 2020-07
{Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bomds). out of which USD 33755 was payable at financial
vear end (31 December 2022: USD 35,398), USD 435175 (31 December 2022: USD 551,571 for
DMS Tarnget Maturty Setting Fund 2103 (Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate Boends), oot of
which USD 34,196 was payable al financial year end (31 December 2022 USD 38.992) and
UED 120,239 for One-Day Preminm Fund, out of which USD 39,178 was payable at financial period
end.

Administrator and Trustee Fees

The Administrator and Trostee is entitled to receive fees calculated as a percentage of the Net Asset
Value of each sub-find for the provision of administration and trstee services respectively, The fees
of the Admimistrator and the Trustee are charged out of the Management Fee received by the Manager
or out of the assets of the relevant sub-fund as may be specified in the relevant Supplement. The fees
and the expenses of the Administrator and Trustee are payable monthly in arrears, and are calculated
al a rate of 0.04% for the first USD 1 billion of the aggregate Net Asset Value of the sub-funds of the
Trust, 0.035% on the next USD 1.5 billion and 0.03% above USD 2.5 billion. The Administrator and
Trustee are also entitled to receive additional fees from the sub-funds to cover any reasonable and
documented ont-of-pocket expenses,

Agent Securities Company fees

The Agent Securities Company in Japan is entifled to an annual fee rate of 0.01% of the Net Assets of
the sub-funds. This fee is payable monthly in arrears and is accrued on a daily basis. Any reasonable
disbursements and out-of-pocket expenses incurred by the Agent Securities Company for client
services carried out on behalf of the sub-funds are bome by the sub-funds. For the financial year ended
31 December 2023, the Agent Securities Company fee incurred was USD 7,685 (31 December 2022
USD 9.23%) for DMS Target Maturity Setting Fund 2020-07 (Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate
Bonds), ont of which USD 637 was payable 2t financial vear end (31 December 2022: USD 668),
USD 8,211 {31 December 2022: USD 10,407} for DMS Target Maturity Setting Fund 2103 (Investing
in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds), ont of which USD 1,124 was payable &t financial year end
(31 December 2022: USD 736) and UTSD 1,503 for One-Day Preminm Fund, out of which USD 11
was payable at financial period end.

Auditor's Remuneration

The statutory audit fee (excinding valne-added tax and out-of-pocket expenses incurred by the auditor
in connection with their audit work), which is paid by the Manager on behalf of the sub<fund, for the
financial year amounted 1o U S0 36,943 (31 December 2022; USD 22,855). There were no other fees
paid to the auditors other than the statutory andit fee.

o
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Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust
Notes to the Audited Financial Statements {Continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2023

5. FEES (Continued)

Establishment and Organisational Expenses

The establishment and organisational expenses (including expenses relating to the drafting of the
Prospectus, the negotiation and preparation of the material contracts, the printing of the Prospectus and
the related marketing material, and the fees and expenses of its professional advizers) incwred
commected with the initial offering of Units in respect of the sub-funds are nol expected to exceed
EUR 25,000 for DMS Target Maturity Setting Fund 2020-07 {Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate
Bonds), USD 125,000 for DMS Tanget Matunty Setting Fund 2103 {Investing in Goldman Sachs
Corporate Bonds) and USD 165,000 for Cme-Day Premiom Fund.

The financial statement Net Asset Valoe per Umnit s calculated with orgamisational expenses being
expensed to the Statement of Comprehensive Income, which totaled USD nil (31 December 2022: USD
nilp for DM S Target Matunty Setting Fund 2103 {Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds) and
LSD 145,000 for Cne-Day Preminm Fund, For the purpose of calculating the MNet Asset Value per Unit
for Unithholder dealing. organisational expenses are being amortised over the first three financial years
of the lifetime of the Funds. USD 57,231 (3] December 2022; USD 125,566 for DM S Target Maturity
Setting Fund 2103 (Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds) and USD 130,447 for One-Day
Premium Fund were amotised in the Unitholders caloulation for the financial period ended
il December 2023 Organisational expenses for DMS Target Matunty Setting Fund 2020-07
(Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds) were fully amortised for the financial yvear ended
31 December 2023 (31 December 2022 USD 15454},

Fixed Operating Expenses

The 2103 Fund incars cerain minimum operating, expenses (being the mindmum Management Fees)
during the life of the Fund to the Fund Maturity Date {the “Fixed Operating Expenses”). In order to
ensure that Unitholders are treated as faidy as possible with respect to such Fived Operating Expenses
(and to ensure that in the event of redemptions by Umnitholders prior to the Fund Maturity Date,
remaining Unitholders do not bear a higher proportion of the Fixed Operating Expenses), the Fund has
calculated the Fixed Operating Expenses and such Fixed Operating Expenses shall be amortised over
the first 3 years of the Fund.

For the financial year ended 31 December 2023, the Fixed Operating Expenses incurred was
USD 163,519 (31 December 2022 USD 380,553} for DMS Target Maturity Setting Fund 2103
(Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds), oot of which USD 845,024 was payable at financial
viar end (31 December 20220 USD 681,506 ).
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Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust
Notes to the Audited Financial Statements {Continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2023

6. FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS

The following tables detail the categories of financial assets and financial liabilities held by the
sub-funds as at 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022,

DMS Target Maturlty  DMS Target Muturlty

Setting Fund 2020-07 Setting Fund 2103
{Tovesting in Goldnan  {Investing in Groldman Che- Dy
Sachs Corporate Bonds) Sachs Corporate Bonds) Premimm Fund
A oal Ax ot Aol
31 Décember 2023 31 Deceniher 2023 31 Decemaber 2023
UsD UsD usD
Financial assets af Fair value throngh
profit oF loss
Total Retum Baskel Swaps - . 59,636,333
Performance-linked Notes 715487212 $3.860,813 -
Unrealised appreciation on Forward
Foreign Currency Comracts - - 243,360
Total Financial assets at fair valoe
through profit or loss 75487222 53,560,533 64, 581,193
Financial liabilities at Fair value through
profit or loss
Unrealised depreciation on Forward
Foreign Cumrency Comracts - - 1.231
Total Financial liabilities at Calr value
through profit or loss - - 1,231

DS Targel Maturity  DMS Target Maturity
Setting Fund 2020.07 Setting Fund 2103
(lavesting in Goldman  (lavesting in Goldman
Sachs Corporate Bonds) Sachs Corporate Bonds)

As = As =
31 Decamber 2072 31 Decenheer 20112
UsD usn
Financial assets at Fair value through
profit or loss
Performance-linked Notes 72.322.261 84,842,688
Total Finandial assets at fair valoe
through profit or loss T8.322.261 54,842,688

7. OFFSETTING FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The sub-funds are required to disclose the impact of offsetting assets and habilities represented i the
Statement of Financial Position to enable users of the financial statements to evaluate the effect or
potential effect of netting armangements on its financial position for recogmized assets and liabilities,
These recogrised assets and liabilities are derivative instruments that are either subject to an
enforceable master netting arrangement or similar agreement or meet set-off criteria.
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Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust
Notes to the Audited Financial Statements {Continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2023

7. OFFSETTING FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

For financial reporting purpose, the sub-funds do not offset derivative assets and derivative liabilities
in the Statement of Financial Position. Amounts which cannot be offset, but which could be settled net
under the terms of master netting agreements if cenain conditions arise, and collateral received or
pledged, are presented in the tables below:

Omne-Day Preminm Fund

Assets subject to. Amonnts Cash  Security Net
master netting available  collateral collateral  Amount of
agrecment for offset pledged  pledged assets
Derivative Assets UsD UsD usD USD USD
Forward Foreizn Currency
Contrads 943,860 i1.231) - - 942,629
Total Return Basket Swaps 50,636,333 - - - 55636333
01,550,193 (1.231) - - 60,578,962
Liabilities .
subject to master Amonnts Cash  Security Net
netting available  collateral collateral  Amount of
agrecment for ofTsel received  received liabilities
Derivative Liabilities UspD usD Usn USD UsD
Forward Foreign Currency
Contracts 1,231 (1,231} -
1,231 (1.231) z

There were no derivative instruments for the financial year ended 31 December 2022,
8 SOFT COMMISSION ARRANGEMENTS

There were no soft commission arangements entered into during the financial year ended 31 December
2023 (31 December 2022: nil).

9. UNITS ISSUED AND REPURCHASED DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR

The following Unit Classes were available for subscription during the Initial Offer Period for DMS
Target Matenty Setting Fund 2020-07 {(Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds) and DMS
Target Matunty Setting Fund 2103 (Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds}:

Class Currency Initial M o wim Minimum i ond oo
Denomination | Ofer Initial Subsequent Redemption

Frice Subscription | Subscription Amount
per Unit Minimum Holding

USD Unit e o o

Class UsD uUsD 10 USD 150,000 MNiA 1 Unit

AUD Tl 1. oo AUD10 | AUD 200,000 N/A 1 Unit

Class

171/290



EDINETOOOO
OO000oOO00o0DO000Do00D00o0DO000DO0o0no(Ess?72)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust
Notes to the Audited Financial Statements {Continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2023

9. UNITS ISSUED AND REPURCHASED DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR (continued)

Investors must subscribe into a Class in the currency in which that Class is denominated. Repurchase
pavments are also made in the cumency in which the relevant Class is denominated,

Following the end of the Initial Offer Penod, it 15 not anticipated that further subscriptions into the sub-
funds will be accepled, save that the Directors may, in their sole discretion, decide to declare a
Subscrption Day on any Business Day. In such circumstances, Units in the sub-funds will be available
for subscmption at the Net Asset Value per Umit (less any duties and charges) on the relevant
Subscription Day and the Directors will confirm details of the relevant Subseription Cut-OfF Time and
date by which settlement should be made in respect of any such subscription.

A Uit holder may submit a redemplion request, in accordance with the requirements in respect of any
Redemption Day, by submitting a redemption request in advance of the relevant Redemption Cut-Off
Time, Units will be redeemed at the Net Asset Value per Unit of the relevant Umnit Class on the relevant
Redemption Day. The aggregate redemption proceeds payable to a Unitholder will be rounded down
to the nearest whele USD 0,01, in the case of the USD Unit Class and AU 0.01, in the case of the
AUD Unit Class. The benefit of any such rounding will be retained for the account of the sub-funds.
For the purposes of caloulating the redemption price of a Umit, the Trustee and‘or the Manager may
dieduct from the Net Asset Value per Unit an amotnt which itthey consider(s) to be an appropriate
allowance to reflect fiscal and sale charges which would be incurred for the account of the sub-funds
in realising assets or closing oul positions o provide sub-funds 0 meet redemption requests on a
particular Redemption Day.

It is generally expected that redemption proceeds will be circulated to Umtholders within 5 Business
Days of the relevant Redemption Day,

All remaining Umnits in the sub-fands will be compulsorily repurchased on the Funds Matunty Dates
and the proceeds of repurchase will be sent to Unitholders within 5 Businegss Days of redemplion.

The following Umit Classes were avalable for subscnption dunng the mtial Offer Penod for Ome-Day
Preminm Fund:

Class Currency Imitial OfTer Minimum Initial | Minimum Minimum
Denomination | Price Subseription Subsequent Redempiion
per Unit Subscription Amount

/ limi muam

Helding
UsD
Accnmulating | USD USD 10 USD 150,000 N/A I Uit
Unit Class
USD Monthly
Distribution UsD UsD 10 USD 150,000 NiA 1 Uit
Unit Class
JPY
Accnmulating | JPY JFY 1000 TPY 150,000,000 NiA 1 Unit
| Unit Class
JPY Monthly
Distribation Py IPY 1000 IPY 150,000,000 N/A 1 Unit
Unit Class

36
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Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust
Notes to the Audited Financial Statements {Continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2023

9. UNITS ISSUED AND REPURCHASED DURING THE FINANCIAL Y EAR (continued)

Investors must subscribe into a Class in the currency in which that Class is denominated. Repurchase
pavments are also made in the cumency in which the relevant Class is denominatecd,

Following the end of the Imtial Cffer Peniod, Units in the sub-fund will be available for subscnption
at the Met Asset Value per Unit (less any duties and charges) on the relevant Subsciption Day.
Completed subscription applications should be submitted by the Sobscription Cut-OfT Time in
accordance with the requirements of the Prospectus, Cleared settlement monies are required to be
forwarded on the third Business Day falling after the relevant Subseniption Day,

A Umnithelder may submit a redemption request, in accordance with the requirements in respect of any
Redemption Day, by submitting a redemption request in advance of the relevant Redemption Cut-OfF
Time. Units will be redeemed at the Net Asset Value per Unit of the relevant Unit Clazs on the relevant
Fedemption Day. The aggregate redemption proceeds payable to a Unitholder will be rounded down
tothe nearest whole LIS 0,01, in the case of the USD Uit Classes and IPY 1, in the case of the JPY
Unit Classes, The benefit of any such rounding will be retained for the account of the Fund. For the
purposes of calculating the redemption price of a Umnit, the Trustee and'or the Manager may deduoct
from the Met Asset Value per Unit an amount which iv'they comsider(s) to be an appropriate allowance
to reflect fiscal and sale charges which would be incurred for the account of the Fund in realising assets
or closing ot positions to provide funds to meet redemplion requests on a pamticular Redemption Day.

It iz generally expected that redemption proceeds will be circulated to Unitholders within 5 Business
Daye of the relevant Redemption Day.

All remaining Units in the sub-funds will be compulsorily repurchased on the Funds Matunty Dates
and the proceeds of repurchase will be sent to Unitholders within 5 Business Days of redemption.

DMS Target Maturity Setting Fund 2020-07 (Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds)

M December 2023 31 December 2022
USD Unit AUD Unii USD Unit AU Unit
Class Class Class Class
Mumbers of Units outstanding at
the beginning of financial year 7.935 866 1,395,373 10,120,945 1738426
Number of Unils issued - - - -
Wumber of Units redeemed (608 450) (60,4558 (2,185,079 (343,123
Numbers of Units outstanding
at the end of finandal year 7,327.416 1,334, M5 7,935,866 1.395373

DMS Target Maturity Setting Fund 2103 (Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds)

31 December 2023 31 December 2022
USD Unit AUD Unit USD Unit AUD Unit
Class Class Class Class
Numbers of Units outstanding at
the beginming of financial year 10,302,722 1,238,393 12,726,668 1,504,927
Humber of Units issued - - - -
MWumber of Units redeemed {432,208) (8.957) (1.923.946) {266,534)
Numbers of Units ontstanding
at the end of Anandal year 10,370,514 1,229,436 10,802,722 1.238.393
a7
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Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust
Notes to the Audited Financial Statements {Continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2023

9. UNITS ISSUED AND REPURCHASED DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR (continued)

One-Day Preminm Fund
31 December 2023

UsD UsD JPY JPY
Accumulating Monthly Accumulating Monthly
Unit Class Distribution Unit Class  IMsiribution
Unit Class Unit Class
Mumbers of Units outstanding at
the beginning of financial
peniod - = - .
Number of Units issued 2359 703 227,292 4,214,764 1135470
Mumber of Units redeemed (30,536) - {423,334} -
Numbers of Units ontstanding
at the end of finandal period 2,329,167 237,292 3,791,430 1135470

Payable for sub-fund Units repurchased as &t 31 December 2023 iz prezented in the Statement of
Financial Pogition and amounts to USD nil (31 December 2022: USD 11,49%) for DM S Target Maturty
Setting Fund 2020-07 { Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds), USD 7,430 (31 December 2022
USD 2.193) for DMS Target Maturity Setting Fund 2103 (Investing in Goldman Sachs Comporate
Bonds) and USD nil for One-Day Premium Fund.

10. DISTRIBUTION POLICY

The distibution policy for the sub-funds will be determined by the Manager from time 1o time and set
out in the relevant Supplement.

The distribution policy of DMS Target Maturity Setting Fund 2020-07 {Investing in Goldman Sachs
Corporate Bonds) and DMS Target Matunty Setting Fund 2103 (Imvesting in Goldman Sachs
Corporate Bonds) is not to make disnbutions to Unitholders bat instead to reinvest all the sub-find's
net income and realised capital gains. Accordingly, an investment in the sub-fund may not be suitable
for investors seeking current returns.

Any dividend paid on a Umt of the sob-funds that has not been clmmed within six years of is
declaration will be forfeited and will be paid for the benefit of the sub-finds, Mo interest will be paid
on any dividend.

Oe-Drhay Preminm Fund do not intend to declare dividends in respect of the USD Accumulating Unit
Class or the JPY Accumulating Unit Class. Any distributable profits relating to such Umnit Classes will
remain in the sub-find's assets and be reflected in the Net Asset Value of such Unit Classes.

The sub-fund intends 1o declare dividends, in an amount (o be determined by the Directors, in respect
ofthe USD Monthly Distribution Unit Class and the JPY Monthly Distribution Uinit Clazs ona monthly
basis, The dividends in respect of such Unit Classes will be declared and paid on the fifth calendar day
of each month, provided that if the fifth calendar day of a relevant month is not a Buziness Day, the
dividends shall be declared and paid on the next Business Day following the fifth calendar day of the
month (the "Dhvidend Declaration Date™).
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Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust
Notes to the Audited Financial Statements {Continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2023

10. DISTRIBUTION POLICY (Continued)

Druring the financial year ended 31 December 2023 there were no distributions declared for DMS
Target Matunity Setting Fund 2020-07 (Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds) and DMS
Target Maturity Setting Fund 2103 {Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds) and for the One-

Day Premium Fund amounted to USD 81,820,

11. OTHER EXFENSES

DMS Target Maturity Setting Fund 2020-07 (Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds)

31 December 2023

3 December 2022

UsD UsD

Professional fees 26,001 28,282
Service expenses 7685 9,239
Mizcellaneons expenses - 15,656
33,686 34,217

DMS Target Maturity Setting Fund 2103 (Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds)

3 December 2023

M December 2022

UsD UsD

Fixed operating expenses 163.51% 380,553
Senvice expenses 8.211 10,407
Miscellangons expenses 10,841 7231
182,571 428,191

One-Day Premium Fund

31 December 2023

UsD

Legal expenses a.041
Registration expenses 6,630
Service expenses 1.503
Miscellaneons expenses 3.631
20,805

11. FINANCIAL RISKS

The sub-funds' investment activities expose them to the vanons types of nsks which ane associated
with the financial instruments and markets in which they invest. The Trust's risk management policies
seek to minimise the potential adverse effects of these nisks on each sub-fumd financial performance in
order to satisfy the investment objectives of the sub-funds.

There i no guarantee that in any time period the sub-funds” investment objective will be successful,
Investors shonld be aware that the value of Units may fall as well as nse. In particular, an investment
in the sub-funds is subject to investment nsk, including the possible loss of the entire principal amount
that an investor may invest. The valoe of Units may rige or fall, as the capital value of the securities in
which the sub-funds invests may fluctuate, The investment income of the sub-funds is based on the
income earmned on the securities it holds, less expenses incurred. Therefore, the sub-funds’ investment
income may be expected to fluctuate in response to changes in such expenses of income.

39

175/290



EDINETOOOO
OO000oOO00o0DO000Do00D00o0DO000DO0o0no(Ess?72)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust
Notes to the Audited Financial Statements {Continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2023

12, FINANCIAL RISKS (Continued)

The main risks ansing from the sub-funds' financial instruments are market risk (including price nsk
foreign currency risk and interest rate nsk), haquidity sk and credit nsk

(a) Market Risk

Market risk anses mainly from uncenainty about future prices of financial instruments held,
specifically from other price movements, It represents the potential loss the sub-funds may suffer
through holding market positions in the face of adverse price movements,

The sub-funds are subjects to market price risk. The value of the sub-funds’ investments will go up and
down as prices of the financial instruments fluctuste,

The sub-finds' financial instruments are susceptible to market price risk from uncenainty about future
prices of financial instruments. All securities in which the sub-funds invest present a nsk of loss of
capital, See Statement of lnvestments on pages 9 -11 for details of the sub-funds exposure to market
price risk. The sub-funds manage price risk by using vanous investment sirategies.

An increase of 1076 in fair value due 1o changes in valuation assumptions of financial assets as o the
reporting date would have increased the net assets atnbutable to the sub-fund and profit for the
financial year by USD 7,548,722 (31 December 2022; USD 7,833,112} for DMS Target Maturity
Setting Fund 2020-07 (Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds) USDr 8,386,083 (31 December
2022 USD §484,269) for DMS Target Maturity Setting Fund 2103 {Investing in Goldman Sachs
Corporate Bonds) and USD 5,963,633 for One-Day Premium Fund. A decrease of 10% would have
had an equal and opposite impact.

() Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk arises from the possibility that changes in interest rates, It will affect fiture cash flows
or the fair values of financial instruments. AL the 31 December 2023 and &t 31 December 2022, the
sub-funds do net have a matenal exposure to interest rate nsk.

(c) Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the sub-funds may not be able to settle or meet its obligations
o time or al @ reasonalble price.

The AIFM maintains an adequate and documented liguidity management policy in accordance with
the requirements of Allemative Investment Fund Managers Directive (the * AIFMD™). The AIFM's
liquidity management policy includes such procedures as are necessary to enable the AIFM (o assess
and monitor the hqudity nsk to which the sub-funds and Trost are or may be expossd (including
conducting regular stress tests nnder normal and exceptional liguidity conditions) and (o ensure that
the liquidity profile of the investments of the sub-funds comply with the Tmst"s underlving obligations.

The Trust's policy to manage liquidity is 1o have sufficient hquidity in the sub-funds 1o meet its
liabulities as and when they fall due, under both normal and stressed conditbons without incuming wdne
losses or risking damage.

The Trust assesses the liquidity profile of each sub-fund consistent with its underlying obligations and
redemption policy during the lifecycle of the sub-fund including at their launch, The Trest ensures that

ligquidity thresholds which are propottionate to the redemption obligations and liabalities of the sub-
fund are set,
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Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust
Notes to the Audited Financial Statements {Continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2023

12, FINANCIAL RISKS (Continued)

(¢} Liguidity Risk {Continued)

A liguidaty measurement methodology 15 m place Lo assess both the asset side and the halality side. Om
the asset side, the methodology is based on a ime-to-liguidate measure and a modelled market valne
adjustment, based on a seres of quantitative vanables for different asset ¢lasses. The mode] takes into
account the expected redemption profile of the sub-fund and provides relevant estimates. Thus, the
methodology provides a clear ronte to portfolio managers on projected cash flows in the event of
portfolio (full or partial) lquidation.

The credit terms for settlement of the liabilities of the sub-funds are generally within three months or
less.

{ddy Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that the counterparty to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation
or commitment that it has entered into with the Trust. The Investment Manager assesses and measures
the risk of each investment on its merits and tailors its credit policy and mondtoring accordingly on a
regular basis,

The maximum exposure to credit fek is represented by the carrying amount of each financial asset at
the reporting date.

Brown Brothers Harriman Trustee Services (Ireland) Limited acts as Trustee and Depositary to the
Trust. Cash held via accounts opened on the books of Brown Brothers Hamiman & Co. (*BBH™) are
obligations of BEH. Accordingly, while BBH is responsible for exercising reasonable care in the
administration of such agency cash accounts where it has appointed the agent (iL.e. in the case of cash
comespondent banks and sub—custodians), 1t 15 not liable for their repavment i the event that the agent.
by reason of its bankmptcy, insolvency or otherwise, fails to make repayment. Brown Brothers
Harmiman & Co, has a long term credit rating of A+ (31 December 2022; A+) as issued by Fitch.

The inability {or perceived inability) of issuers to make timely payments of interest and principal may
make the values of secunties approximate only to the values placed on such secunties. In the absence
of a liquid trading market for cemain securities it may not be possible to establish the fair value of such
securities.

The Motes Issuer is a special purpose company which does not have substantial assets of its own to
support its obligations under the Notes, Amounts duee to the sub-funds will only be pad with funds
paid to the MNaotes Issuer under any charged agreement{s) and any charged assets. Therefore, the sub-
funds assume fill credit nsk of the Notes Iszuer, any comterparty and the obligonis) of any charged
assels,

The Motes will provide the sub-funds and each Unit Class with the exposure to a portfolio of fixed
income instruments (the “GS Bonds™) issued by The Goldman Sachs Group, Ine (the “GS Bonds
Issuer™) with a long term credit rating of A (31 December 2022: A) as issued by Fitch,

As at 31 December 2023, the issuer and counterparty for performance-linked notes held by the sub-
funds are Luminis [1 Limited (“the Motes Issner™ ),
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Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust
Notes to the Audited Financial Statements {Continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2023

12. FINANCIAL RISKS (Continued)

(d) Credit Risk (Continued)
Whale MaplesFs Limated ("MFS™) 1= the registered owner of the Notes Issuers ordinary shares, these
are held subject (o a Declaration of Trust ("DOTY). Under the DOT. MFES holds the Notes Issuer’s
shares on trust for the benefit of a "Qualified Charity”™ (as defined in the DOT) which is legally the
ultimate beneficial owner ("UBQ®) of the tmst assets which comprises solely the shares or the
economic value of the shares once the Notes Issuer is formally liquidated, Typically. the nominal value
of these trust assets would be less than US55 1,000, There are no bearer shares in the legal structure.

The sub-funds' cash is swept on a nightly basiz to pre-approved financial institutions. As at 31
December 2023, the institutions where the sub-funds’ cash was held and their respective credit mtings,
al that date, are listed below:

Institution Short Term Credit Indicator
ANZ, Hong Kong Upper Medium Grade

BMNP Paribas, Paris Upper Medium Grade
IPMorgan Chase, New York High Grade

Sumitomo Mitsni Trost Bank. London Upper Medium Grade

(&} Counterpany Risk
Similar to credit risk, the sub-funds may be exposed to counterpany risk, or the risk that an institution
or cther entity with which the sub-funds has unsettled or open transactions will default,

As the One-Dray Premium Fund 15 matenally exposed to the Swap Counterparty, the sub-fumd may
suffer significant losses in the event such as default or decline of mamagement or financial situation of
the Swap Counterpary.

The Manager may from time tolime, inits sole discretion, approve additional swap counterparties with
which the sub-find may transact. Any such additional connterpanties will be disclosed in the financial
statement of the sub-fund.

Goldman Sachs International Bank acts as the Swap Counterparty o the Cme-Day Premium Fund. The
Swap Counterparty acts as a primary dealer for European government bonds and is involved in market
making in Ewropean government bonds, lending and deposit taking actvities, and secunties lending,
In exceptional circumestances, the Swap Counterparty may be unable to fulfl itz obligations under the
Swap Agreement due to regulatory reasons, change in the tax or accounting laws relevant to the Swap
Counterparty, or otherwise, In such circumstances, there is a risk that the sub-fund’s investment
strategy conld be interraped or terminated. In such circumstances, the investment objective and policy
of the sub-fimd may not be achieved and the sub-fimd may be unable to recover any losses incumed,

The ability of the sub-fund to meet its obligations to Unitholders will depend on the receipt by it of
pavments owed (o the sub-fund by the Swap Counterparty under the Swap Agreement. As a result, the
sutefimd will be exposed to the creditworhiness of the Swap Counterparty,

Goldman Sachs Intemational Bank may act as the Strategy Calculation Agent. The Total Retum Basket
Swap to be entered into by the sub-fund may be highly specialised and there may be no counterpary
other than Goldman Sachs which provides such an OTC derivative instrument.

Goldman Sachs International Bank has a long term credit rating of A+ as issued by Fitch,
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Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust
Notes to the Audited Financial Statements {Continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2023

12, FINANCIAL RISKS (Continued)

(1) Foreign Currency Risk

Foreign currency nisk is the nisk that the fair value of fulure cash flows of the sub-funds’ investments
will fluctuate as a result of changes in foreign currency exchange rates. Certain of the sub-funds” assets,
liahilities, income and expenses are denominated in currencies other than its functional cumency, Asa
resull, movement in exchange rates may affect the value of those ems. The Investment Manager
momters this risk on an ongoing basis,

The tables below set out the carrying amount of financial instroments in each currency:

DMS Target Maturity Setting Fund 2020-07 (Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds)

As at 31 December 2023

AUD Balances USD Balances Total Balances
{USL¥) {USIY) (LS
Financial Assels 5485702 67078211 T3563.213
Finandal Liabilities - (122,180 (122,180
8,485,702 66,956,031 75,441,733

As at 31 December 2022
AUD Balances USD Balances Total Balances
(VS (USIy) (USD)
Finandal Assets 5471185 T0, 040,867 78,512,052
Finandal Liabililies - [83,295) {83,295)
B.471.18% 69,957,572 78,428,757

DMS Target Maturity Setting Fund 2103 (Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds)

As al 31 December 2023

AUD Balances USD Balances Total Balances
{USDY) {USIy) (LSIN)
Finandial Assets 6,102,301 77.823,741 83,926,542
Finandal Liabilities - {966,776 (966,776
6,102,801 76,856,965 82,959,766
As at 31 December 2022
AUD Balances USD Balances Total Balances
(USD) {USD) {USD)
Finandal Assets 5,886,269 T9. 158,626 85,044,895
Finandal Liabilities - (7T79.218) (775.218)
5886269 T8ITH408 84,265,677
COme-Day Preminm Fuand
As at 31 December 2023
JPY Balances USD Balances Total Balances
{UIST¥) (USI¥) {USDN
Finandal Asseis 1,298,734 60,131,969 61,430,703
Finandal Liabilities (1.231) {725, 797) {727.028)
1,297,503 59,406,172 60,703,675
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Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust
Notes to the Audited Financial Statements {Continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2023

12, FINANCIAL RISKS (Continued)

() Foreign Currency Risk {Continued)

As al 31 December 2023, had the AUD strengthened or weakened by 5% aganst USD, with all other
varables held constant, this wonld have an approximate effect of USD 424,285 (31 December 2022:
USD 423,559) for DM S Target Maturity Setting Fund 2020-07 {Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate
Bonds) and USD 305,140 (31 December 2022; USD 294,313) for DMS Target Setting Fund 2103
{Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds) on the Statement of Comprehensive Income ofthe sub-
fund.

As at 31 December 2023, had the JPY strengthened or weakened by 5% against USD, with all other
varables held constant, this would have an approximate effect of USD 64,875 for Cne-Day Preminm
Fund on the Statement of Comprehensive Income of the sub-fund,

(g) Fair Value Estimation
The sub-fund has classified fair value measurements using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the
significance of the inputs used in making the measurements.

FRS 102 Section 2A.1 on “Fair Value Disclosure” requires disclosure relating 1o the far value
hierarchy in which fair value measurements are categonsed for assets and liabilities. The disclosures
are based on a three-level fair value hierarchy for the inputs used in valuation techniques to measire
fair value. In March 2016 amendments were made to paragraph 34.22 of this FRS, revising the
disclosure requirements for financial institutions to more closely align the disclosure requirements with
those in [FRS 13 Fair Value Measurement and historcal practice with those in Insh GAAP,

Financial assets and liabilities are measured in the Statement of Financial Position at fair value. The
fair value measurements are categonsed within a three-level hierarchy. The valuation hierarchy is
based upon the relative observability and reliability of inputs to the valuation of each of the sub-finds’
investments. The inputz or methodology used for valuing securities are not necessarily an indication
of the nsk associated with investing in those secunties, The three levels are defined as follows:

Level 1 — The unadjusted quoted price in an active market for identical assets or liabilities that the sub-
fund can access at the measurement date.

The types of assets and liabilities categonised in Level | generally include actively traded domestic and
certain foreign equity securities, certain U5, government obligations, denvatives actively traded on a
national securties exchange (such as some fatures and options ), shares of exchange traded funds (even
if their investments are valued wsing Level 2 or Level 3 inputs),

Level 2 — Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable (i.e, developed
uging market data) for the asset or liabality, either directly or indirectly.

These include investment-grade corporate bonds and certain non-U_8, sovereign obligations, listed
equities, mutual funds, equity-linked notes and over the counter denvatives. As level 2 investments
include positions that are not traded in active markets and/or are subject (o transfer restrictions,
valuations may be adjusted to reflect illiquidity and'or non4ransferability, which are genarally based
on available market information.

a4
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Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust
Notes to the Audited Financial Statements {Continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2023

12, FINANCIAL RISKS (Continued)

(g) Faur Value Esttmation {Contimued)
Level 3 — Inputs are unobservable (e, for which market data 15 unavalable) for the asset or hataliy.

The types of assets and habibities categonsed in Level 3 generally mnclude, but are not limated to, certmn
debt securities (such as asset-backed, mongage-backed, loans and sovereign debt) and denvativies even
though they are valued using broker quotes; certain debt secunties and denvatives adjusted by a
specified disconnt for gquidity or ether considerations; certain sovereign debt secunties valued using
comparable securities issned by the soverzign adjusted by a specified spread, securities whose trading
has been suspended or that have been de-listed from their current primary trading exchange valued at
the most recent available market or quoted price; secunties in defanlt or bankmptey proceedings for
Wwhich there i no current market guotation valued al the most recent available market or quoted price;
potential litigation recoveries and interests related 1o bankruptey proceedings; third-party investment
funds where valuations are provided by fund sponsors and which are adjusted for hquidity
considerations as well as the timing of the receipt of information amd certain securities that are valued
using a price from a comparable secunty related to the same issuer.

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which the fair value measwrement is categorized is
determined on the basis of the lowest level inpat that is significant (o the fair value measurement in its
entirety. The significance of an inpul is assessed against the fair value measurement in ils entirety.

If a fair value measurement uses observable inputs that require significant adjustment based on
unobservable inputs, this may be deemed to fall within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy, Assessing
the significance of a panicular input to the fair valoe measurement in its entirety requires judgement,
considenng factors specific to the asset or liability,

The determination of what constitutes “observable” requires significant judgement by the Investment
Manager. The Investment Manager considers observable data to be that market data that is readily
available, regularly distributed or updated, reliable and verifiable, not proprietary, and provided by
independent sources that are actively involved in the relevant market.

The following tables provide an analysis of the fair value huerarchy of the sub-funds' financial assets,
measured a far value at 31 December 2023 and 2022,

DMS Target Maturity Setting Fond 2020-07 (Investing In Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds)

31 December 2023 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assets UsSD UsD UsD UsD
Performance-linked noles - - T5487.222 75,487,222
Total - - 75,487,222 75,487,222
31 December 2022 Level 1 Lewvel 2 Level 3 Total
Assels UsD USD UsD USD
Performance-linked notes - . 78.322.261 78.322.261
Total - - TR.J22.161 T8.322,261
45
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Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust
Notes to the Audited Financial Statements {Continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2023

12, FINANCIAL RISKS (Continued)

(g) Fair Value Estimation (Contined)

DMS Target Maturity Setting Fund 2103 (Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds)

31 December 2023 Level 1 Lewvel 2 Level 3 Total
Assels UsD USD USD Usn
Performance-linked notes = - 33,860,833 83,960,833
Total - = 83,860,833 B3.B60, 833
31 December 2022 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Aszets UsSD USD USD UsD
Performance-linked notes - - 4,54 2.688 84,847,658
Total - - 84,842 6EB #4.843 688

Omne-Day Preminm Fund

3 December 2023 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assels UsD UsD UsD UsD
Total Return Basket Swaps - 59,636,333 - 559,636,333
Forward Foreign Currency Confracts - 943 3610 - 043 860
Total - 60,580,193 - 60,580,193
M December 2023 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Liabilities Usn UsD UsD UsD
Forward Foreign Currency Contracts - 1,231 - 1,23}
Total . 1.231 - 1.231

The Sub-Fund's assets and Labilities fiot measured a fair value include cash, shor-term receivables
and payables. The respective balances are carried at values that reflect a reasonable approximation of
their fair value, In accordance with the requirements of FRS 102, cash balances are classified as Level
1 and all other assets and liabilities are classified as Level 2.

Transfiers into and omt of levels are recognised at the end of the reporting year. There were no transfers
into or out of Level 3 during the financial year ended 31 December 2023 or 31 December 2022,

46
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12, FINANCIAL RISKS (Continued)

(g) Fair Value Estimation (Contined)

The able below shows a reconciliation from the beginning balances (o the ending balances for fair
value measurements of level 3 financial assets of the fair value hierarchy,

DMS Target Maturity Setting Fund 2020-07 (Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds)

COpemng Balance

Sales during the financial year

Realised (losses) on investments

MNet change n unrealised
appreciation/{depreciation) on

inviestments at fair value throngh profit or logs

Level 3 Level 3

31 December 2023 31 December 2022
UsD UsD

78,322,261 109,538,299

{6,204, 569) {22,775094)
(606433) (1.986,221)
3,975,963 (6.454,723)
75,487,222 78322261

Closing balance

As ol 31 December 2023, an increase of decrease of 5% in far value due to changes in valuation
assumptions would have an approximate effect of USD 3,774,361 (31 December 2022: 3.916.113) on

the net assets attributable to the sub-fund,

DMS Target Maturity Setting Fund 2103 (Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds)

Opeming Balance

Sales during the financial year

Realised (losses) on investments

Met change in unrealised
appreciation/{depreciation) on

investmends at fair value throngh profit or loss

Level 3 Level 3

31 December 2023 3 December 2022
USD UsD

54,842,683 132,020,528
(3.490,121) {18,132.975)
(L348,042) (3,744,521)
3856308 125,300,344 )

B3, 860,833 84,842,688

Closing balance

As @ 31 December 2023, an increase or decrease of 5% in fair value due to changes in valuation
asgumptions would have an approximate effect of USD 4,193,042 (31 December 2022: 4,242,134 ) on

the net assets attnbutable to the sub-fund,
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Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust
Notes to the Audited Financial Statements {Continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2023

12, FINANCIAL RISKS (Continuwed)
(g) Fair Value Estimation {Continoed)

Valuation methodology

Two of the sub-funds mvest into performance-linked Motes, the Far value of which is determined by
Goldman Sachs, using a valuation model. The key observable inputs and unobservable inputs to this
valuation model are as follows:
+  Key observable inputs
o Interest rates
o G5 credit spread
o Level of the strategy as well as its components
* Eey unobservable input
o Implied volatility
o Discount rates and yields

Unobservable inputs are developed btased on the best information available in the circumstances. The
valuation method being used for financial assets held by the sub-funds thag are classified as Level 3 in
the fair value hierarchy 15 the use of proxy prcing techniques by Goldman Sachs, The yield being nsed
in the proxy pricing is considered the most significant unobservable input wsed which impacts the price
and related fair value of the performance linked notes.

13. EXCHANGE RATES

The following exchange rates have been nsed wo translate assets and labilities in correncies other than
USD at financial year end:

As at As at

31 December 2023 31 Decem ber 2022
AUD 14655 147446
EUR 1.103% 1.0705
JPY 140, 9800 -

14, RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Directors of the Manager are not aware of any transactions with related perzsons duning the financial
vear ended 31 December 2023 and for the financial yvear ended 31 December 2022, other than those
disclosed in these financial statements, The ATFM, Waystone Management Company (IE) Limated, the
Investment Manager, Waystone Asset Management (IE) Limited, the Agent Securities Company in
Goldman Sachs Japan Co., Ltd are regarded as related parties of the sub-funds under FRS 102 * Related
Party Disclosures”.

Mr. Keith Hazley, Mr. Jim Allis, Ms. Rachel Wheeler, Mr. Andrew Kehoe, Mr. Tim Madigan and Mr.
Andrew Bates are Directors of the Manazer and also emplovees of related parties to the Tmst,

Ms. Denise Conghlan and Ms. Samantha Mevlit were Directors of the Manager and also emplovees of
telated parties to the Trust, Ms. Denise Coughlan resigned from the Board of Directors of the Manager

on 29 Seplember 2023 and Ms. Samantha Mevlit resigned from the Board of Directors of the Manager
om 28 February 2024,
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Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust
Notes to the Audited Financial Statements {Continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2023

14. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

All related parties are transacted at arm’s length.

Fees incumed with relsted parties during the financial year are disclosed in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income. Amounts pavable to related paries af the financial vear are disclosed in
Nole 5.

15. STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN PORTFOLIO POSITIONS

The statement of changes in portfolio positions for the financial year has nod been presented thongh
the details may be obtained free of charge from Waystone Management Company (IE} Limited.

16. NET ASSET VALUE AND NET ASSET VALUE FER UNIT

The MNet Asset Value per redeemable panticipating unit i= calculated by dividing the total net assets (as
calculated for prcing purposes) of the sub-funds by the number of redeemable participating Umnits in
issie. The Net Asset Value per redeemable participating umit reported in the Statement of Financial
Position is that used for financial satement purposes,

For the purposes of the financial statements, all organisational expenses, including fees paid to the
professional advisors of the sub-funds, are expensed in the financial year they are incwred in
accordance with FRS 102, Organdsational expenses were charged 1o the Statement of Comprehensive
Imcome. The tables below illustrate the reconciliation between the Net Asset Value for financial
statement purposes and the Met Asset Value per Unit for Unitholder dealing purposes.

DMS Targel Maturity Seiting Fund 2020-07 (Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds)

As al As al
31 December 2023 31 December 2022
UsD UsD
Met Asset Value for financial
stalement purposes 75441,733 78,428,757
Add: Cumulative additional
orgamsational expenses wnitten of T . 15454
Met Assel Valoe for Unitholder
dealing purposes T5441,733 78444211
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Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust
Notes to the Audited Financial Statements {Continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2023

16, NET ASSET VALUE AND NET ASSET VALUE PER UNIT (Continued)
DMS Target Maturity Setting Fund 2103 (Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds)

As at As al
31 December 2023 31 December 2022
UsD UsD
Met Asset Value For financial
stalement purposes 82,959,766 84,265,677
Add Cumdative additional
organisational expenses written of T 57,231 125,566
Met Asset Value for Unitholder
dealing purposes 83016997 84,391,243
Ome-Day Preminm Fund
Asat
31 December 2023
UsD
Met Assel Value for financial
statement purposes 60, T03.675
Add: Cumniative additional
organisational expenses written off 130,447
Met Assel Value for Unitholder
dealing purposes 60,834,122

17. SIGNIFICANT EVENTS DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR
Ome-Day Premium Fund was authorised by Central Bank on 9 Augnst 2023 and launched on
12 September 2023,

M. David MeGeough resigned from the Boand of Directors of the Manager on 30 June 2023 and Ms.
Denise Coughlan resigned from the Board of Directors of the Manager on 29 September 2023,

Mr. Andrew Bates was appointed as Independent Non-Executive Director of the Manager on
1 September 2023 and Mr. Andrew Kehoe was appointed as Exective Director of the Manager on 29
September 2023,

The geopolitical unrest between lsrael and Palesting due to Ismel formally declaning a state of war
following the attacks by Hamas militants, along with Russian invasion of Ukraine, together with
growing turmodl from fluctuations in commeodity process and foreign exchange rates, and the potential
to adversely impact global economzes, has dnven a sharp mcrease i volatibily across markets.

There were no other significant events occuming during the financial vear ended 31 December 2023,
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Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust
Notes to the Audited Financial Statements {Continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2023

18. SIGNIFICANT EVENTS SINCE THE FINANCIAL YEAR END
Ms. Samantha Mevlit resigned from the Board of Directors of the Manager on 29 Febquary 2024,

There were no other significant events occurring after 31 December 2023 requiring financial statement
disclosure,

19. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved by the Directors of the M anager on 22 May 2024,
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Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust
Statement of Investments
Asg ol 31 December 2023

DMS Target Maturity Setting Fund 2020-07 (Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds)

Number of Falr Value o of Net
Shares Security Description UsD Assets

Performance- Hnked notes (31 December 2022 99 86%)
Cayman Islands

73474130 Luminis I Limited, USD Class 67,023,101 8334
13524170 Luminis 1T Limited, AUD Class 2464121 11,22
Total Investments 75487223 101, 0
Cher assets and habalitics {45489 {0.06)
Met Assets attributable (o Unitholders 75,441,733 1000, ()

10
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2024
73,963,800 11,198,859
95,583 14,472
73,868,216 11,184,387
7,147,333.059
1,319,138.956
9.22 1,396
9.24 911
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2024
4,490,006 3,295
4,490,006
2019 31 2024 31
2020 24 700,000
2022 10 22 2
2023 12 31 4
700,006
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Waystone 1,600
AIFMD UCITS
MIFID FATCA CRS
2017 Waystone Governance Ltd
Lambay Capital Limited DMS
IE
IE
2023 12 31
IE Waystone Investment Management IE Limited
AIFM UcITS
AIFMD
IE 16
IT
2024
EU 38,384,964,768.86
EU 5,651,375,193.07
AIF 350
UCITS 472
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328

2024 29
163.24
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IE
2023 12 31
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
10 76,181 12,436 600 98
11 3,411,670 556,921 544,220 88,838
3,487,851 569,357 544,820 88,936
12 22,310,530 3,641,971 20,888,050 3,409,765
13 44,086,186 7,196,629 17,358,095 2,833,535
66,396,716 10,838,600 38,246,145 6,243,301
69,884,567 11,407,957 38,790,965 6,332,237
15 4,490,006 732,949 4,490,002 732,948
15 3,600,000 587,664 3,600,000 587,664
17,918,369 2,924,995 - -
186,650 30,469 - -
15 23,528,080 3,840,724 16,234,938 2,650,191
49,723,105 8,116,800 24,324,940 3,970,803
14 20,161,462 3,291,157 14,466,025 2,361,434
69,884,567 11,407,957 38,790,965 6,332,237
2024 30 2024 30
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IE

2023 12 31 2022 12 31
70,149,292 11,451,170 55,760,548 9,102,352
(29, 354,208) (4,791,781) (27,192,786)  (4,438,950)
40,795,084 6,659,390 28,567,762 4,663,401
(32,819,769) (5,357,499) (16,404,300)  (2,677,838)
7,975,315 1,301,890 12,163,462 1,985,564
8,578 1,400 (41,380) (6,755)
7,983,893 1,303,291 12,122,082 1,978,809
(690,751) (112,758) (1,539,228) (251,264)
7,293,142 1,190,533 10,582,854 1,727,545

2023 12 31 2022 12 31
7,293,142 1,190,533 10,582,854 1,727,545
7,293,142 1,190,533 10,582,854 1,727,545
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IE

2023 12 31

2023 4,490,002 732,948 3,600,000 587,664 - - - - 16,234,938 2,650,191 24,324,940 3,970,803
- - - - - - - - 7,293,142 1,190,533 7,293,142 1,190,533
- - - - - - 186,650 30,469 - - 186,650 30,469
4 1 - - - - - - - - 4 1
- - - - 17,918,369 2,924,995 - - - - 17,918,369 2,924,995

2023 12 31 4,490,006 732,949 3,600,000 587,664 17,918,369 2,924,995 186,650 30,469 23,528,080 3,840,724 49,723,105 8,116,800

2022 4,490,000 732,948 - - - - - - 5,652,084 922,646 10,142,084 1,655,594
- - - - - - - - 10,582,854 1,727,545 10,582,854 1,727,545
2 0 - - - - - - - - 2 0
- - 3,600,000 587,664 - - - - - - 3,600,000 587,664

2022 12 31 4,490,002 732,948 3,600,000 587,664 - - - - 16,234,938 2,650,191 24,324,940 3,970,803
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IE
2023 12 31
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
7,293,142 1,190,533 10,582,854 1,727,545
(8,578) (1,400) 41,380 6,755
690,751 112,758 1,539,228 251,264
5 281,530 45,957 192,869 31,484
186,650 30,469 - -
8,443,495 1,378,316 12,356,331 2,017,047
(1,194,482) (194,987) (13,943,775)  (2,276,182)
7,028,370 1,147,311 8,406,110 1,372,213
14,277,383 2,330,640 6,818,666 1,113,079
(2,195,115) (358,331) (148,646) (24,265)
12,082,268 1,972,309 6,670,020 1,088,814
11 (282,805) (46,165) (328,762) (53,667)
11 (89,780) (14,656) - -
10 (83,391) (13,613) (902) 147
(2,825,153) (461,178) - -
(3,281,129) (535,611) (329, 664) (53,814)
8,578 1,400 (41,380) (6,755)
15 4 1 2 0
17,918,369 2,924,995 - -
15 - - 3,600,000 587,664
17,926,951 2,926,395 3,558,622 580,909
26,728,091 4,363,094 9,898,978 1,615,909
17,358,095 2,833,535 7,459,117 1,217,626
13 44,086,186 7,196,629 17,358,095 2,833,535
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IE
2023 12 31
1.
IE
D04 A4EQ 35
KBA 2023 29
KBA 2023 29
2.
IFRS
2.1
2014 IFRS
2.2
€
2.3
)
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(i)

30 12

Giii)  IFRS

FVOCI
FVTPL

FVOCI FVTPL
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FVTPL
FVTPL
FVTPL

ECL
ECL

12 ECL )

ECL
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365
ECL ECL
ECL 12 12
ECL
ECL EAD
100
180
ECL
ECL
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2.4

2.5

2.6

AIFM UCITS

( NAV )

NAV

IFRS 15
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2.8

2.9

2.10

IFRS 15

2.11
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2.13

2.14

2.15

IFRS

2.16 IFRS

2023 IFRS
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IAS
1AS
IAS IFRS

I1AS IFRS

IAS 12
IAS 12

2.17
1ASB

IFRS 16 2024
I1AS 2024
I1AS IFRS 2024
IAS 21 2025

206/290



EDINETOOOO

OO000oOO00o0DO000Do00D00o0DO000DO0o0no(Ess?72)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2023 12 31 2022 12 31
70,149,292 55,760,548
70,149,292 55,760,548
AIFM ucITS
( NAV )
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
62,773,445 49,497,233
4,871,299 4,559,136
265,802 181,641
1,414,589 1,358,332
824,157 164,206
70,149,292 55,760,548
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
1,850,996 1,539,756
560,848 421,650
26,942,364 25,231,380
29,354,208 27,192,786
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2023 12 31 2022 12 31
63,034 66,391
279,375 300,000
10,679,176 6,573,879
16 17,204,387 7,158,436
573,331 154,603
7,811 302
273,719 192,567
3,738,936 1,958,122
32,819,769 16,404,300

2023 12 31 2022 12 31
53,187 47,705
9,847 18,686
63,034 66,391

2023 12 31 2022 12 31
394,741 46,621
7,811 302
264,705 192,567

9,014
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
690,751 1,539,228
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12.5 7,975,315 12,122,082
25 8,578
7,983,893 12,122,082
12.50
2022 12.50 996,914 1,515,260
25 2,145 -
999,059 1,515,260
(308,308) 23,968
690,751 1,539,228
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
96 52
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
* 8,847,494 5,407,039
956,826 567,150
674,729 374,173
200,127 136,969
88,548
10,679,176 6,573,879
*2022 337,275
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9.
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
279,375 300,000
* 257,500 296,250
28,908 50,673
25,750 31,625
17,138
4,114 9,668
595,647 705,354
*2022 146,819
2023 12 31 0
2022 112,500
10.
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
12,472 11,570
83,391 902
95,863 12,472
11,871 11,570
7,811 302
19,682 11,872
76,181 600
11.
11.1
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
1,085,488 756,726
282,805 328,762
1,368,293 1,085,488
313,611 121,044
264,705 192,567
578,316 313,611
789,977 771,877
284,225 227,657
505,752 544,220
789,977 771,877
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11.3
2023 19
IE
2,825,153
12.
VAT
11

LFMSIL
2022
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CBI

282,805 2022 328,762
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
89,780
89,780
9,014
9,014
80,766
BTA
LFMSIL BTA
2023 10
2023 12 31
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
6,935,025 4,480,831
1,548,537 413,065
12,823,383 15,766,497
171,431
160,970
284,225 227,657
386,959
22,310,530 20,888,050
59,507 2022
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13.
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
24,157,742 14,487,854
7,036,939 2,870,241
HSBC 373,758
12,517,747
44,086,186 17,358,095
2023 12 31 Al 2022
A2 Al 2022 A3 HSBC Aa3
14.
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
117,373 455,696
14,508,375 10,702,710
5,043,387 1,045,055
VAT 173,560
492,327 225,505
530,565
1,332,934
20,161,462 14,466,025
15.
15.1

2023 12 31 2022 12 31

100,000,000 100,000,000
4,490,006 4,490,002
4,490,006 4,490,002
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
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0 2022 3,600,000

2023 12 31 2022 12 31

16,234,938 5,652,084
7,293,142 10,582,854
23,528,080 16,234,938
2007
100
2021
2
UK
2,360,500 2022 362,132
IT
2022 0
IE
2022 0
UK
8,422 2022 0
USA
2022 0
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Lux
1,192 2022 0
UK 105,108
2022 0
UK
1,338,856 2022 1,516,075
IE
42,961 2022 40,894
IE
6,645,508 2022 2,385,206
IE
1,103,968 2022 500,004
Lux
0 2022 283,881
0 2022 733,586
723,862 2022 326,970
383,030 2022 77,716
USA 0
2022 169,260
IT
3,594,896 2022 755,083
COE
0 2022 40,345
Lux
571,319 2022 0
163,837
2022 0
IE
0 2022 32,716
12
UK 0 2022 150,409
IE 199,017 2022 262,656
Lux 10,266 2022 0
IE 233 2022
4,681
28,755 2022 257,731
341,866 2022 0
10,452 2022 0

214/290



KBA
KB

14

90,532

29,060

87,664

100,471

KB

31

17.
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2,023 2022 0
332,028 2022 0
143 2022 0
83,899 2022 0
539,855 2022 0
Lux 210,981 2022 137,734
IE 459,989 2022
0 2022 77,801
usS 2,605 2022
UK 8,422 2022
18,037 2022
IE 2,750,726 2022
UK 182,756 2022
0 2022 811
210,576 2022 258,570
11,403 2022 0
UK 1,004,187 2022 0
2022 146,819
14 2023 12
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19.

20.

21.

2023
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
CBI
CBI
2013/36/EU (EV) 57572013
16,399,659
2023 12 31
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EU

2022 13,067,870

10,082,271

2022 13,237,075
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59,507 2022
6,994,532
2023 12 31
0 30 4,298,824
30 60 772,164
60 90 711,749
90 1,211,795
6,994,532*
*
22.
KBA
IE
2014 463
KBA
KBA
15,437,838

217/290

2023 12 31
2023 12 31
2022 12 31
1,523,076
2,262,938
273,224
421,593
4,480,831
KBA
WMC 1E
2023 29
WMC IE
WMC IE



23.

24.

2024

30
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Waystone Management Company (IE) Limited
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Az at 31 Decamber 2023

Ag at As al
31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022
MHoles € €
Non-Current Assots
Fixture, fiflings & equipment 10 78181 800
Intangible assats 11 3411670 B4 )
3,487 861 G4, 820
Current Assets
Trade and other recanables 12 22,310,530 20,888,050
Cash and cash equivalents 13 44,086,188 17,358.095
66,396,716 38,245 145
Total Assets 649,884 56T 38, T80, 865
Equity and Liabilities
Equity atiributable to owners of the company
Called up share capital 18 4,490,008 4,450,002
Capital contribution 18 3,600,000 3800000
Shara premism 17,918,369 -
Unrealsed currency gain 186,650 -
Retaingd eamings 16 23,528 080 16,234, 5933
Total Equity 49,723,108 24,324,840
Trade and othér payables 14 20,181 462 14,465,025
Total Equity and Liabliities 69,884 567 38,750,965

Approved by the Board of Directors and signed on its behalf by:

kel tarfes y

Keith Hazley andrew Kehoe
Directar Director
Date: 30 April 2024 Date: 30 April 2024
Tha notes on pages 15 1 32 fomm part of these inancial slatements 12
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Waystone Management Company (IE) Limited
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMFREHENSIVE

INCOME
For the financial year ended 31 December 2023

Financial Year  Financlal Year

Ended Ended

3 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022

Mates € €

Revenue 3 70,149,292 55,760,548
Cost of sales 4 {29,354,208) (27,192, 788)
Gross profit 40,795,084 28,567,762
Adrminisiralive expenses 3 (32,819,789) (16,404, 500)
Operating profit & 757518 12,163,462
Interest payable and similar charnges 8,678 (41,360}
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation T.983,093 12,122,082
Tax on profl on ordinary activities T {690,754} {1,530,228)
Profit for the financial year 7,283,142 10,582 854

Financial Year  Financlal Year

Ended Ended
31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022
€ €
Staterment of Profit or Loss and Other
Comprehensive Income
Profit for the financial year 7,283,142 10,582,854
Total profit or loss and other comprehansive
Income for tha financial year 7,293,142 10,582,854
All amounts relae 1o continuing operations,
The noles on pages 15 o 32 form past of these financial slatements, 11
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Waystone Management Company (IE) Limited
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the financal year ended 31 Decamber 2023

Unrealised
Share Capital Share curmency Retalned
capital contribution premium gain eamings Total
L 3 ) € € € €

Balance at1 4,450,002 3,600,000 - - 16,234 938 24,324,540
January 2023

Total Profit or Loss

and Cther

Comprehensive

Income for the

financial year

Profil for the fnancial - - - - 7,293 142 7,293,142
year

Unrealised curmancy - = = 186,650 - 1E6,650
Gadn

Transactions with

Onwnirs, recorded

directly in Equity

Issue of ordinary 4 - - - - 4
shares

Proceeds of isswe of -
equity shares.

17,918,369 = - 17,918,369

Balance at 4,490,006 3,600,000 17,918,368 186,660 23,528,080 49,723,105
3 December 2023

Balance at 1 4,450,000 - . . 5,552,084 10,142,084
January 2022

Total Profit or Loss

and Other

Comprehensive

Incame for the

financial year

Profit for the financial - - - - 10,582 854 10,582 BS54
yaar

Transactions with

Ownars, recorded

directly in Equity

Issue of ordinary

shares 2 - = = = 2
Additional capital - 3,600,000 - - - 3,600,000
cantribution
Balance at 4,490,002 3,600,000 - - 16,234 936 24,324,840
3 December 2022

The Nt on pages 15 o 32 10 pan of ese inancial siatemens, 13
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Waystone Management Company (IE) Limited
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the financzal year ended 31 December 2023

Financial Year Financial Year
Ended Ended
31 Dee 2023 31 Dec 2022
Motes € €
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit for the financial year T.283,142 10,582 854
Adursiments for
Interest (receivable)payable and similar charges {8,5678) 41,380
Tax on profl on ondinary aclivities T &80,751 1,530,228
Depreciation and amorisation 5 281,530 192 869
Unrealsed curency gain 186,650 -
8443495 12,356,331
Mavarmants in working capiail
Movemeant in trede and other receivables (1,184,482} (13,843,775)
Movemeant in trade and other payables 7,088,370 8,406,110
Cash generabed from operating activities 14,277,383 6,818 666
Tax paid [Z,195,115) (148, 646)
Met cash ganerabed from operabng activites 12,082,268 6,670,020
Cash flows from investing activities
Defared contract costs 11 (282,805) (328, 762)
Oher intangible assets 11 (89,780} -
Fisdures and fittings 10 (83,381} 902)
Purchase of investiments (2,B25,153) -
Net cash used in investing activities (3,281,129) (329 664)
Cash flows from financing activities
Interest received|paid) 8,578 {41,380)
Izsue of equity share capital 15 4 2
Issue of equily share prermsnm 17,918,369
Additional capital contrbutans 16 - 3,600,000
Net cash generated from financing activilies 17,936,951 3,558 622
Met increase in cash and cash equivalents 26,728,084 9,898 978
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of financial year 17,358,005 7459117
Cash and cash equivalents at end of financlal year 13 44,0046 186 17,358,095
Thar neobes. on pages 15 bo 32 jorm pat of these financial slabements. 14
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Waystone Management Company (IE) Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2023

1.  Reporting entity

Waystone Management Company (IE) Limited (tha *Company®) is 8 company limited by shares incorporated and
domiciked in the Republic of Ireland, The Company is lax resident in Ingland, The address of its registensd office
ia 35 Shelboume Road, Ballabndge, Dublin 4, D04 A4ED.

The merger in respect of the Company and KBA Consultng Management Limited was complated on 29
Seplember 2023, As a resull, KBA Consulling Managemeni Limited was dissolved by operaton of law on 29
Seplember 3023 and its funds are now managed by the Company.

2, Accounting palicies

Thise financial staternents hawve been prepared in accordance with Internaticnal Financial Reporling Standards
as adopted by the Eurcpean Unicn {or “IFRS").

The significant accounting policies adopled by the Company are apphed consistantly in the preparaton of thege
financial statemants are set out beliow.

2.1  Basis of preparation

The financial siatemeants are prapared on the going concem basis, under the histonical cost convention excapt
a5 modified by the accounting policies below and comply with Irish Statute comprising the Companies Act 2014
{@s arnended), and the requerements of IFFS.

Thia Board of Direciors (or the “Directors”) ane satisfied with the performance of the business dunng the financial
year, As a result of the ongaing activity, the Direclors ane satished that it is appropriate 1o prepane the financzal
slatemeanls on & goang conoem bages.

The Directors have assessed the performance of this enlity and are satisfed that there = a reasonable
expectation that i will continue to be profiable for the foresesable future.

2.2  Functional and presentation currency and foreign currency transactions

The financial statements ane presented in Euro, denoled by the symibol €, which & also the fundional curréncy
of the Company.

Foreigh cuirency Iransaclions duning the inancial year have been iranslated at the rate of exchange using & daily
trangaction rate genarated in the accounting software, Monetary assets and kabilities denorminated n curmencies
other than Euro are translated at the exchange rates ruling af the Stalement of Financial Position date. The
resulting profits or losses ane deall with in the Staternent of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Incoma,
MNon-manelary assets and abilties are transkated ab historic rates.

2.3 Basic financial instruments
(i) Trache and other recanablss

Trade and ather recaivables ane initially recognised at fair value and theraafier stated at amortised cost using the
@ fictive interest method less impaiment losses for bad and doubtful debis except when the effect of descounting
wiuld be immatenal. In such cases the recevalbles are stated at cost less imparment loases for bad and doubitful
debils.

{ii) Trade and ofer payables

Trade and other payables ane not interest beanng and are siated al their nominal value. These amounis represant
liabilities for goods and senices provided to the Company prier 1o the end of inancial year which are unpaid, The
amounts are unsecuned and are usually pasd withan 30 days of recognition. Trade and other payables ane
presenled as curment liabikties unless payment is naot due within 12 months after the Staternent of Financial
Position date.

15
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Waystone Management Company (IE) Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2023

2. Accounting pelicies (continued)
23 Basic financial instruments [continued)
{iii) IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

Inilial Recognibon and Measwamant:
A financial instrurment is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a fnancial lability ar
equity instrument of anather enlity.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initally measwed at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable 1o the acquisition or issue of Snancial assels and financial liabidities (other than financial assets and
financial liabisties at fair value through pooft or loss) ane added to or deducied from the fair value of the Bnancial
assels or financial Eabilities, as approprabe, on initial recognition. Transaction costs dinectly attributable to the
acquisition of inandal assels of inancial iabilikes a1 fir value through profit or loss ane recog nised mmedately
in profit of loss

Financial a5sels = classiicalon and subsequent measunsmant
Financial assats ame classified, at intial recagnition, and subsequenlly measufed as financial assets sl BMortised
cosl, fair walue through clher comprehanshe income of Tair value through prafit or les on the basis
of both:
»  the Company's business model for managing the financial assets. and
= fihe contractual cash flow charactenstics of the Snancial asset.

Financial assels are not reclassified subsegquent to their initial recognition unless the Company changes its
business model far managing financial assats, in which casa all affected financial assets are reclassified on the
first day of the first reparting peried following the change in the business model.

Financial a5sels oo maasuved al amontised cost when bolh of he falovwang condilions ang mel
= the financial assel is held within a Busness Model whose cbiectve (8 1o hold financial assets in crder o
collect contraciual cash flows; and
= the contractual terms of the Bnancial asse! give fse on specified dates 1o cash fAows that are solely
payrments of principal and interest on the principal amaunt cutstanding

Financial assels are measured al fair value throwgh cthar comprehensive incomea § [he below condibon is mal:
» the financial asset i held within 8 business model whese objective is achieved by both coliacting
contractual cash flows and seling Snancial assets.

All financial assels nol classified as measured al amortised cost or Fair Value through Other Comprehensive
Inceemie {or "FVDCIT) as described albove are measured al Fair Value through Profit or Loss (or "FYTPL™L On
initial recognition, the Company may wrevocably designate a fnancial assel thal otherwise meels the
requirements to be measured At amortsed o8t of at FYOC! as 8t FYTPL if doing 50 eliminales of significantly
reduces an acosunbng meamalch thatl would otherwise ansa.

Financial assels — business model assassmant
The Company makes an assessment of the objective of the business moedel in whech a financial assat is held
because this best reflacts the way the business is managed, and information is provided to management.

Th infgrmation considered includes:

= ihe stated policses and cbjectives and the operation of thase policses in praclics;

=« the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that
business model) and how those rishs are managed;

= how managers of the business are compensabed = e.g., whether compensation is based on the fair value
of the assata managed or the contraciual cash fiows collected; and

=  ftransfers of financial assats to third partias in transactions that do not qualify for derecognition are not
considered sakes for this purpose, consistent with the Company’s continuing recognition of the assats.

16
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Waystone Management Company (IE) Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2023

2. Accounting policies {continued)
2.3 Basic financial Instruments (continued)
{iii) IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)

Finaneial azsels - assasemant whether contraciual cash fows are solaly paymans of principal and miarest:
For the purposes of this assessment, 'principal is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on initial
recognition. Inlerest’ is defined as consaderation for the tme value of money and for the credd nsk associated
with the principal amount cutstanding during a particular period of time and for other basic lending risks and costs
(&.g., liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well a5 a profit margin.

In assassing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the Company
considers. the contractual terms of the instrument

This includes assessing whether the financial asset containg a contraciual term that could change the liming or
amount of contractual cash Aows such that i would net meet this condstion,

In making this fssassment, the Company congiders:
»  contingant events that would change the amound or timing of cash flows:
= ferms that may adjust the comractual coupon rate, including variable-rate Taaures, prepayment, and
extension fealures; and
« famms that limit the Company's claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g.. non-recourse featunas).

A prapaymeant feature is consistent with the sclely payments of pincipal and interest criterion if the prepaymant
amaunt substantially represents unpaid amounts of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding,
which may include reasonable additional compensabion for eady termination of the conlract

Adgticnally, for a financial asset acquired al a discount or premium 1o &5 confractual paramount, a feature thal
pemmils of requires prepayment &l an amount that substantially represents the contraciual par amount plus
acenied (but unpaid) contractual interest (which may 8k6 include reasonable additional compensation far eady
terrmanation) (s treated as comsistent with this citerion if the fair value of the prepayment featune i insignificant at
initial recogetion.

Financial assels — subsequant measuremant and gaing and losses:
Financial assets at amorlised cost are measured at amartised cost using the afective intenast method.

Financial Fabiibes = classificalion, suibsequend measuremen! and gains and losses.

Fmancial liabities are classified a5 measured at amonised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability 5 classified as at
FVTPL i it is classified as held-for-trading, it is @ dervatve or it is designated as such on indtial recognition,
Financial liabilities at FVTPL are medsured at fir value and net gaing and losses, including any interest expensa,
ane recognised in profit or loss, Other financial abililies are subsequently measured at amontised 0081 using the
efective inberegt mathod. Interes! expense and foreign exchange gaing and losses ane recognised in profil o
loss. Any gain of loss on derecognition is also recognised in profit or loss

The Company's financial kabilites include due 1o related parties, chent deposits, long-1erm loans and accruals
and accounls payable. These are measwred at amonised cost. The Company considers the carmying value o be
a reasonable approximation of fair value.

Davacognibion of Ainancial assels:

Tha Company derecognises a financial asset whan the contractual nghts to the cash flows from the financial
asse! expire, or it ransfers the rghts to recere the conbractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantzally
all of the risks and newards of cwnirship of the financial asset ane transfemed o in which the Company neither
trangfiers nor refaing substantially all of the risks and rewards of ewnership and it doss nat relain control of the
fnancial assel.

The Cornpany enters inlo frangactions whereby it iransfers assets recognised in Statement of Financial Posstion
bul retaing either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transhermed assels. In these cases, the
transfermed assets ane nat derscognised.

17
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Waystone Management Company (IE) Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2023

2. Accounting policies {continued)
2.3 Basic financial Instruments (continued)
{iii) IFRS 9: Financial Instruments (continued)

Darpcognilion of fnancial Kabillies:

The Company derecognises a financial liablty when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled ar
expirg, The Compary also derscognises a financial Eability when ifs terms are modified and the cash flows of the
madified liabikly are substantally different, in which case a new financial liability based on the modified terms is
recognised a1 fair valee.

On derecogniton of 8 financial liability, the difference between the carrying amount extingushed and the
considaration paid (includeng any non-cash assets transfermed or liabilibes assumed) is recognised in profit or
Ioss.

Impairmant of fingncial assels:

Tha Company recognises loss allowances for axpecied credit lesses (or "ECLs") on financial assats measured
at amontised cost. The Company measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifeime ECLS, excep! for
fnancial assels for which credit risk (e, the nsk of default cocurring over the expected Iife of the finandal
instrurnent) has not incréased significantly since initial recognition, whach are measured at 12-month ECLS

When determining whether the credd risk of a financal asset has increased signiScantly since initial recognition
and when estimateng ECLs. the Company consaders reasonabla and supportable infarmation that = relewant and
available withouwt undwe cost or affor.

This includes beth quantitative and gqualitative information and analysis, based on the Company's historical
axparience and infoemed credit assessment and including fonward laoking information.

Tha Company assumaes that the credit nsk on a financial asset has increased significantly if it is more than a
spacified amount of days past due. The Group consaders a financial asset 10 be in default when:
= the borrower is unlikely 1o pay its credit obligations to the Group in full, without recownse by the Company
to actions such as realising secunty (if any is held);
= fthe financial asset is mone than 385 days past due

Lifetirne ECLs afe the ECLS that result from all passble default events over the expected Me of a financzal
Ingtrument.

12-monh ECLs are the porion of ECLs that result from default events that are possible within the 12 months
afier the reporing date {or & shorer period if the expected life of the instrument is less tham 12 months). The
maximunm penod considened when estmating ECLs ts the maximum centractual period over which the Company
is exposed to credit rigk

Maasurameant of ECLs:

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measuned as the prasent value of all
cash shorifalls (i.e., the difference betseen the cash Nows due 1o the entity in accordance with the conlract amnd
the cash flows that the Company expects 10 recenve). ECLS are discounted at the efiscive interest rate of the
financial asset Management has assessed that the Groups EAD (or “Exposura At Dafault”) is 100% for all debit
balances and 7% for all credit balances,

Crepctit-iemgnirgd fracin! fssars

AL each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried o amortised cost are credil
impaired. A Gnancial asset is ‘credit-irmpaired’ when ane of mone events thal have 8 detrimental Fmpact on the
estimated future cash lows of the financial assel have ocourred,

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the folkewing obsarvable data:
»  significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer,
= abneach of contract such as a default or being mare than 1580 days past due;
»  fthe restructuding of a loan or advance that is out of the nommal practics; or
= ilis probabile that the bommowar will enter bankruptcy or other fnancial reorganisation.
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Waystone Management Company (IE) Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2023

2. Accounting policies {continued)
2.3 Basic financial Instruments (continued)
{iii) IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)

Proganfation of showancg for ECL in the Stalemn of Financinl Posilion:
Loss allowances for financial assets measured all amorlised cost are deducted from the gross carmying amaunt
of the assets.

The Company ulilises an ECL model imemally developed and updated by managemeant. Inpuls imo the madel 8
based upon management's assesament of the probabity of defaull and loas given default

Thia gross carrying amount of a financial assat is wiitlen off when tha Company has ne reasenable expectations
of recovering a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof. For customers, the Company has a policy of
assessing all balances greater than 120 days. To date the Company has not had to recard any related write offs.

Non-financial instrurmanfs:

At each réporing date, the Company rinvegws the canying amounts of s nondinancial assets o debérmine
whither there is any indication of impairment. If any such ndication exists, then the asset's recoverable amourt
is estirnated.

24 Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the Staternent of Cash Flow, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on
hamd, deposits held at call with financiad institutions, other shor-tarm, highly lquid investments with onginal
matusities of threa months or less that are readilly convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject
b an insignificant risk of changes in valua.

25 Employes benefits

Dafingrd coniribution plang and other long-erm employee benefils

A defined conribution plan is a post-ernployrent benehit plan under which the Company pays fved contributions
inte & separate entity and has no legal of conslructive obligation fo pay fumher amounls. Obligations far
contibubions to defined contribubion pengian plans are recognised as an expense in the Siatement of Profi or
Loss and Other Cesnprehensive Incomse in the financial year during which serices ane rendened by employees.

2.6 Revenue

Revenue consists of set-up fees and management fees eamed in respect of the Company acling as an AlFM
and UCITS Management Company to investment funds, bank interest and cerain sundry incoma, which is
recognised in the Staterment of Prefit or Loss and Qther Comprehensive Incoma in the financial year when it is
eamed. Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits associabed with the transaction
will flenw Bo the Company, and the amount of the révenus can be reliably measured,

Managerment fees ane calculated based on a percentage of a fund's Net Assel Value (or "MAY), subjiect 10 a
minimum agreed fea, Where these i no final NAY available for 8 chenl fund, an eslimate of the fes income i
caleulated using the fund's minimum fee or using a previous period's calculaton and accounting for any Known
changes in the NAY of the Fund, such as capial activily or significant market movements, This bass of income
estimation is bath reasonabde and prudent.

Bank intarest income or expense (s racognised in the Statement of Profit or Less and Oither Comprehensive
Income using the affectve inerest rate.

Profassional senvice foes
Professional services fees are recorded by refarance to the period of the servica. Amounts samad but not yet
billed are recorded as accruad incomee.

The Company mostly ¢ams fixed annual fees or fied rate fees linked 1o annual perfomance obligations ar
trangacticn-based fees which are recognised when the sarvice is offersd. Managemant was nod requinsd 10 apply
ather practical expedients for revenue recognition under IFRS 15
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Waystone Management Company (IE) Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2023

2. Accounting policies {continued)
26 Revenue [continued)

Performance abligations and mavenue recogmition policias.:
Thase services are recognised over the financial year they are provided. The income is accrued untll client
invoices ane issued. Revenue billed but not yel considered eamed are recorded as defermed revenue.

27  Taxation

Currient tax, including Irish corporation tax (at & rate of 12,5%) is provided on the Company's taxable profits,
Currem s i the expeched 12 payable of receivable on the taxable income of 1682 fof the fingncal year, usng
tax rates enacled of substantively enacied al the Staterment of Financial Possion date, and any adjustrment 1o tax
payable in respect of previous financial years.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of all timing diflerences that have onginaled but not reversad at the
Staternent of Financial Position date. Provision is made at the rates expected to apply when the timing differences
revarsa. Timing differences are differances between the Company’s taxable profits and its results as stated in
the financial statements that asise from the inclusion of gains and lossas in laxable profits in periods differant
frorm those in which they are expacied to apply in the years in which the timing diffarences are expected to reverse
based on tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacied by the Statement of Financial
Position dabe, Deferred tax s not discownted

A deferred Lo asset is reganded as recoverable and therefore recognised only when, on the basis of all available
evidence, it can be regarded as o likely than not that there will be suitable tacable profits from which the futune
reversal of the undedying timing differences can be deducted.

28 Costolsales

Included in cost of sales ane costs paid by the Company in respect of platform costs paid on behalf of clien funds.
Thase costs of sales are recovered through the fees charged as par revanue in note 3 below.

25 Expenses

Expenses ane recognised in the Satement of Praf or Loss and Other Comprehensive Intome as incurred and
are accounted for on an accrual basis,

210 Deferred contract costs

In ling with the requrements of IFRS 15 Revenue from Conlracts walh Cusfomers, incremental recoverable
expenses relaling 1o contracts with customers ane capitalised and amomiced over the expected life of the confrasct
when these expenses ane expected 1o be recovered. Management estimates the expacted e of the contract
Thia Directors have estimated that § years is an appropriaie pencd of amartisation (expensed as incurred in the
pricr financial year). Where cartain contracts have a definite usaful life. the incremental costs have been
amaortizad over the appropriate lifa of the contract.

211 Equity and reserves

All capital payrgnts ane booked bo equity within shane capital or share prémium. Reserves consist of accumulated
profit or loss as taken from the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income smoe dabe of
InCOrporation,

212 Impairment of assets, other than financial instruments, stocks, and work in progress

At the end of each financzal year, the Company conducts an impainment review of all its assets and assesses
whether there is any indication that the recoveralle amount of an asset is less than ils carrying amsaunt. If any
such indication exists, the canrying amount of the asset i reduced 1o its recoverable amount, resulling in an
impairment loss. kmpairmant losses are recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other
Comprahensive Incomea.

Whare the circumstances causing an impairment of an assel, other than goodwill, no longer apply, than the
impainment is reversed through the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income. An impaiment
loss recognised for goodwill is net reversed in subsequent pericds
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Waystone Management Company (IE) Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2023

2. Accounting policies {continued)
212 Impairment of assets, other than financial instruments, stocks, and work in progress (continued)

Thia recoverable amount of tangibée fived assats, goodwill and other intangible fed assats is the higher of the
fair valwe less cost to sell, of the assat and ils valwe in use. The value in use of these azsels is the presant valve
of the cash flows expecied 1o be denved from those assets. This is determined by referance to the present valee
of the future cash flows of the Company which is considered by the Directors 1o be a single cash generating unit

2,13 Provisions, contingent liabilities, and assets

If the Company has pravided for 8 provision of conlingent liabilly of assel. managerment estirate the fair value.
using the infamation made available 1o them, and probable expected cash fiow advised to tham by consulted
professsanals.

214 Share-based employee remaneration
Thia Company cparatas equity-settled share-based remunaration plans for its employees.

All goods and sanvices received in exchange for the grant of any share-based payment are maasured at their fair
values.

Where employees ane revanded using share-based payments. the fasr value of employees’ Senices is delermined
indirectly by reference 1o the fr vslue of the equily instruments granied, This fair value is appraised al the grant
dale and excludes the impact of nan-markel vesling conditions,

2156 CGritical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncerainty

The pregaration of the financial sialements in accordance with IFRS requires managemant to make estimales
and assumptions that effect the reparted amounts of assets and lisbilities and the disclosure of contingent assets
and liakilites at the date of the financial staternants and the reported amounts of income and expansa during the
financial wear. Actual results could differ from those estimatas.

Thi estirmates and underlying assumptions ane reviewsd on an on-going basis. Revisions o acoounting estimates
arg recegnised in the financial year in which the estimate is revised if the: revision affects only that financial pericd
or in the fingncial penod of the revigion and future Bnancial penods if revision afects both curment and fulune
penods. The enlical accounting judgements applied by the Direclors ane:

+  Assassmentof the accrued income — raview of the clients” accounts and agreements in place to estimate
the revenues to be accrued at financial year end. Calculation supported by prier year knowledge and
based on signed senvices agreameants in place between the Company and its clients. there is limiled
subjectivity invohred in the calculation. Accnued income is included in Revenue in Hole 3.

= The defemed contract costs relate to capitaksed cormmisshons paid to stali, which the Company expacts
to recover over the ke of the asset. The amortisation period (8 5 years which the Deecion beleve 1o be
an sccurale estimate of the lile of the confracts.

216 Mew and amended IFRS Standards that are effective for the current period

In the current peniod, the Company has appled the below amendments io IFRS Slandards and Inlerpratations
that are effective for an annual perod that beging on or after 1 January 2023 Thes adoplion has not had any
matedal impact on the disclosunes o on the amounts reported in these inancial statements,

Definition of Accounting Estimales - Amendments 1o 1A 8
The amendmants 10 1AS 3 carify the distinction Bebagan changés in 3coounting éstimates, changés in acoownting
policies and the cormecton of emars. They also clanty how entilies use measuremant echnigques and inpuls o
develop accounting esbmates,

The amendmeants had no impact on the Cormpany’s financial stalements.

Disclosurg of Accownting Policies - Amendmants o 1AS 1 and IFRS Prachice Stelement 2

Th amendments o |AS 1 and IFRS Practice Statemant 2 Making Matenality Judgements provide guidance and
axamples to help antities apply materiality judgamants to accounting policy disclosures. The amendments aim ta
help entiies provide accounting policy disclesures that are more usaful by replacing the requirement for entities
to disclose their ‘significant’ accounting policies with a requirement toe disclose their ‘maberial’ accounting policies
and adding guidance on how entities apply the concept of malenality in making decisions about accounting policy
disclosures

F3]
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Waystone Management Company (IE) Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2023

2. Accounting policies {continued)
216 Mew and amended IFRS Standards that are effective for the current period (continued)

Disclosure of Accownting Policies - Amendments to 1AS 1 and IFRS Praclice Stelement 2 (continued)
The amendments hawve had an impact on the Company's disclosures of accounting policies, but not on the
measurement, recognition, or presentation of any items in the Company's fnandial statements.

Dl Tar rointed 1o Assels and Liabilties arsing from o Siogle Transaction = Amendments fo IAS 12

The amendments 10 IAS 12 Income Tax narrow e $cope of the initial recognition exception, $o thal it no longer
apphas o ransaclions thal give fise 1o equal laxable and deduclible temporary dfferences such as leases and
decommissioning abdtes.

The amendmenis had no imgact on the Company's financial stalements.

247 Standards, amendments and Interpretations to existing Standards that are not yet effective and have not
been adopted early by the Company

At the date of authonsation of these Bnancial statemants, several new, but not yet effective, Standards and
amendments 1o axisting Standards, and Interpredations have been publshed by the Inbernational Accounting
Standards Board (TIASE"). None of these Standards or amendmaents 1o existing standands have been adopled
eary by the Company,

The Dereclons anticipate that all relevant prenauncements will be adopied for the first period beginning on or alter
the effective date of the pronauncament.

Standard Title of Standard or Interpratation Effective date
Amendments to IFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback 1 January 2024
Amendrents o 1AS 1 Classification of Liabidibes as Currenl and Mon- | 1 January 2024
curent and Non-current Liabilties with Covenants
Amendrmants to &5 7 and IFRS 7 Supplier Finance Arangemeants 1 January 2024
Amendments bo IAS 21 Lack of Exchangaabdty 1 January 2025
3. Revenus

Revanue far the financial year has been darived from:

M Dec 2023 3 Dee 2022

€ €

Managemant and related feas 70,149,282 55,160 548
70,148 2082 55,760,548

The Company is autharised and regulated as an AIFM and UCITS Management Company to investment
funds, providing risk management and other activities. Tumaver comprisas sel-up fees and managamant
feas. Management fees ane calculated based on a percentage of a fund's Net Asset Walue {or “HAW),

subject to @ minimum agreed fiea.
Geographlcal Market M Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022
€ 3
Republic of Iretand B2,773,445 49,407,233
Luxembourg 4,871,299 4 558135
Spain 265,802 181,641
Cayman lslands 1,414,589 1.358 332
Frange B24167 164,208
70,149,292 55,760,548

230/290



EDINETOOOO
OO000oOO00o0DO000Do00D00o0DO000DO0o0no(Ess?72)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Waystone Management Company (IE) Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2023

Cost of Sales

M Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022
€ £

Audit and accounting fees for the Funds managed by the
Company 1,850,998 1.539.756
Directors” fees for the Funds managed by the Company 560,848 421,650
Crher cost of sales 26,542,364 25,231,380
20,354,208 27,192 785

Ciber cost of sakes constitules costs paid by the Company in mespect of the Waystone platform funds
(umbrella funds thal are managed by Waystone, but which host multiple investment managers and
investment advisors ¢n individual sub-funds) and ogrtain client funds (whene the Company receives a
managemént fee and pays cerbain expenses on behalf of the client oul of the management fed). These
costs of sales ane recowered through he fees charged as per lurndwer in nole 3 above,

Administralive expenses

M Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022

€ €

Statutory auditors” remuneration 63,004 65,501
Directors” fees 78,378 300,000
Staff costs (Mote 8) 10,679,176 G.5TIETS
Recharges from Group companies (Note 16) 17,204,387 7158435
Legal and prolesssonal fees 573,31 154,603
Depreciation 7811 32
Amorisation 73,718 192 567
Criher expenses 3,738,936 1,958 122
32,819,769 16,404,300

Statutory auditors” remuneration M Dec 2023 3 Dec 2022
€ €
Satutosy dudit fee 53,187 47,705
Tax advisory foe 9,847 18.685
63,034 65,381

Operating profit 31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022
€ €

Operating profit is stated after charging:

Realised gamniloss) on foreign currencies 394,741 45 621
Depreciation of tangible assats 7811 02
Amorisaton of defermed contract cosls 264,705 192,567
Amorisation of other imangible assets 9,014 -
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Waystone Management Company (IE) Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2023

T. Taxation on ordinary activities

(@) Analysis of charge in the financial year 3 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022
€ €

Current tax expense

Corporation tax on profit on ordinary activities 690,751 1,530,228

(b) Reconciliation of current tax charge based on applying the standard rate of tax to the profit per the financial
statements and the current tax charge reparted in the financial staterments.

Cuwren! lax reconciiabon

Profit on eadinary activilies taxable a1 12.5% 7,475,318 12,122,082
Profitiboss) taxable at 25% 8,578 -
7,883,893 12,122,082

Profit on erdinary activities before tax mullipked by the
slandard rale of corporation tax in the Republic of Ireland

at 12 .50% (20E2- 12.50%) 996,914 1,515,260

Profit befone tax multiplied by 25% 2,145 .
999,058 1,515,260

Effects of:

Luxemboung wealth taxatan - -

(Cwveryumder provisian in prior inancial year [308,308) 23,966

Current corporation tax expense 690,751 1,539,228

B Employees and remuneration

Humbar of employees

The aversge number of persans employed (including executive direclors) duning the financial year was as
fallows:

3 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022
Number Mumbser
Managerment and staff a5 52
The staff costs {incusive of Direciors’ salanes) 3 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022
comgrisa: ) € €
Wages and salaries” 8,847 494 5,407,039
Social wealfare costs S86.828 567,150
Pensicn costs 674,729 IT4TI
Other staff banafits 200,127 136,960
Cither staff costs . 88,546
10,679,176 B5TIETS

*In 2022, share based payments amownting 1o €337 275 were made to one direcior and two employees. The
Director and employees received shares In the Company's ultimate parent company Sigma Irdsh Topco
Limited. These payments were then recharged te Sigma Irish Topeo Limited. Mo share-based payments ware
made during the financial year

232/290



EDINETOOOO
OO000oOO00o0DO000Do00D00o0DO000DO0o0no(Ess?72)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Waystone Management Company (IE) Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2023

0.

Directors’ remuneration

3 Dec 2023 3 Dec 2022

€ €

Dirgctors” fees 278,375 300,000
Directors” salakes® 257,500 206,250
Soecial walfare costs 8,908 50,673
Pension costs 25,750 31,625
Comrmassions - 17,138
Medical and olher benafits 4,114 0.GBE
555,647 OS5, 354

*In 2022, share based payments amounting to €148.819 were made to one direcior, The Direcior recenved
shares in the Company™s ultimate parent company Sigma Irish Tepoo Limited, These payments wene then
recharged to Sagma lrish Topoo Limited

Remuneration of Direclors is disgclosed abave, Other than noled above, no expenses, share oplions of other

remuneration was pasd or awarded 1o the Direclors dumng the financial year. The amounts outstanding 1o
Directors as at 31 December 2023 was €NJ (2022: €112,500)

Fixtures, fittings, and equipmant

W Dec 2023 3 Dec 2022
Cost € L
Cpening balance 12472 11,570
Additions B33 a0z
Clasing balance 95,863 12,472
Depreciation
Opening balance 11,871 11,570
Chiarge for the financial year 7811 302
Closing balance 19,662 11,872
Met book value TE,181 GO0
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Waystone Management Company (IE) Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2023

1. Intangible assels
111 Deferred contract costs asset

M Doc 2023 31 Dec 2022
£ £
Coat
Opening balance 1,085,488 756,726
Additions 282 805 328,762
Closing balance 1,368,293 1,085 488
Amorisation
Cipaning balance 313,611 121,044
Change for financial year 264,705 1892 567
Closing balance ETH,316 33611
Net book value TBH.5T7 TTLETT

Thee spiit of the total deferred confract costs spit bebween current and non-curment is shown below

Current 284,225 227 657
Mon-curment 505,752 Sdad 230
Tatal TE9,977 TT1.877

The defermad conlract costs relabe 10 capialised commissans paid 10 business developmant slall amounting
to €242 A0S (2022 €328 762).

In accordance with IFRS 15, sales comméssion costs ane capialised and amortised over the expected life of
thia fund which the sales contract k= relates to. Tha amortisation periad is S years, which the Diraciors believe
to be a best estimate of the life of the contract based on assat management industry average fund iife.

Deferred set-up costs relate to fund set-up costs incurmed by the Company in relation fo the establishmant
of fund for a clant during the financial year. Thase sel-up costs ane being amortised over a S-year period

M2 Otherintangible sssets

3 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022
€ €
Cost
Additions B8, 780 =
Closing balance B9,TED -
Amaortisation
Change for financial year 9,014 -
Clasing balancs 9,014 =
Met book value B0, 766 -
26
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Waystone Management Company (IE) Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2023

1
1.3

1%

14,

Intangible agsets (continued)
Investment

Par the Business Transfer Agreament ("BTA") executed on 19 Aprl 2023, cerain clients of Link Fund
Manager Solutions (IE) Limited "LFMSIL") novated to the Company on 8 Oclober 2023 by way of a
Business Transfer Agresment ("BTA") and Central Bank of Ireland ("CBI') Change of Service Providar.
Thi Company purchased the assumed assels and liabdties of LFMSIL. As at 31 December 2023, the
imvestrment has a fair value of €2 825,153 (2022: €M),

Trade and other receivables 31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022
€ €

Currant
Trade and other receivables, nat* 6,935,025 4480830
Amounis owed from Groug coempanies 1,548,537 413,065
Prepayments and acorued incoma 12,823,363 15,766,487
Corporation tax receivable 17143 -
VAT receivable 160,970 -
Deferred contract costs, curent (See Mabe 11) 284,225 227 65T
Other recaivables 386,950 -
22,310,530 20.888,050

*Trade and ather receivables is net of provision for bad debts amounting to €59 507 (2022: €Nil).

Cash and cash equivalents 31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022

€ €

Cash held at Allied Insh Bank 24,157,742 14 487 854

Cash held at Bank of Iretand 7,036,218 2,870,241

Cash held at HSBC 3T, TER -
Cash equivalents 12,517,747

44 036,186 17,358,095

At 31 Decamber 2023, Allied Irish Bark had a credit rating of A1, as determined by Moody's (2022 AZ),
Biank; of Ireland had a credit rating of A1 (2022 AJ) and HSEC had a credit rating of Aa3.

Trade and other payables 3 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022
€ L3

Amounts falling due within one year
Trade payables 117,373 455 GO
Acciuals 14,508,375 10,702,710
Amounts owed 10 group companies 5,043,387 1,045,055
VAT liabaity - 173,560
PAYE payable 452,327 225 505
Defermed revenue - 530,565
Corporaton lax payable - 1,332,934
20,181 462 14,466,025

Amounts owed 10 Group companies ane inberest free, utnsecured, and payable on demand
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Waystone Management Company (IE) Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financal year ended 31 December 2023

1% Share Capital and Reserves
151 Called up share capital - equity

3 Dec 2023 3 Dec 2022
€ €
Authorised
Cirdinary shares of €1 each 100,000,000 TO0, 000, 000
Allotted
Crdinary shares of €1 sach 4 490,006 4,490,002
Called up and pakd
Ordinary shares of €1 each 4,480,006 4 490,002
—

The ordinary shares ane presented as share capital in the financial statements.

Mo Deractor had an interest in the share capdal of ihe Company &l any time durshg the financal year ended
31 December 2023 or the financial year ended 31 December 3022,

15,2 Capital contribution
Dwring the financial year, the Company recerved €Mil capdal contribution from 5 immedkate parent (2022

€2.600.000
153 Retalned earmnings
3 Dec 2023 M Dec 2022
€ €
Cipening redained sarmings 16,224,838 5652 084
Prafit for the financial year 7,283,142 10,582 854
Closing retained eamings 23,526,080 16,234,838

All ordinary shares rank equally. Holders of voling shases are entitied to ane wabe for each Ordinary shana
al ganeral meelings of the Company

The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the entity's ability to continue as
a going concerm, so that it can continue to provide retums for shareholders and benafits for other
stakeholders,
Accumulated bsses m aquity includes all current and prior financal year retaned profits and losses.
16.  Related party transactions and controlling party
Ultimate controlling parties

The enmedeate Parent Company of the Company 8 Ceflon Directors Lemided, which 8 a company
incorporated in 2007 in Ireland. Cliften Directors Limited holds 100% of the share capital of the Company.

The smallest group in which the resulis of the Company are consolidated is that headed by Sigma irish
Acquica Limited, which is a company incopoarated in 2021 in Ingland

The largest group in which the resulls of the Company are consolidated is thal headed by Sigma Luxco 2
SARL Limited, which is & company incarporated in Luxembourg,

Sigma Ireh Topes Limited s the controliing pary of the Wayatens Group
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Waystone Management Company (IE) Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2023

16. Related party transactions and controlling party

Transactions with group companies
Includied in note 5 ane the following
«  €2.380,500 of busaness development and fund distibution recharges provided from Waystone Capstal
Solubons (UK) Lid
(2022: €362,132),
« €5.073 of expenses relates to IT licances by Link Fund Administrators (Ireland) Ltd (2022: €M),
. E!!-?EI.-IEI;:P expenses relates 1o Tund distribution by Waysiene Investimenl Management (IE) Limiled
{2022: €hd),
« E8.422 of expenses relates lo compliance support by Waystone Compliance Solutions (UK) CCL (2022
ENil),
€1.623 of expenses relates o compliance suppon by Waysione Compliance Solutions UISA (2022 €Nil).
€1.152 of expenses ralates io staff costs by Waystone Comporate Services (Lux) 54 (2022 €Nl),
€105,108 of expensas relates to stafl costs by Waysbone Managerment (UK) Lid (2022 €Nil),
€1.338,856 of expensas relates 1o business development recharges and London proparty recharges by
Waystone Governance (UK) Limited (2022: €1,518,075),
€42 951 of expenses relales io charges io suppor the dients of the Company by Waysione Comporate
Services (IE) Limited (2022 €40,8584),
= E8845508 of expenses relales lo company secrelanal services, risk managemen! services and
ocperalional support provided by Waystone Centralised Services (|E) Limited (2022: €2, 385.208),
«  €1.103,968 of expenses relates to investment management senvices provided by Waystone Assat
Management (1E) Limited (2022: €500,004),
« €Nl of expenses relates fo recharge for Bloomberg and olher charges provided by Waysione
Management Cormgany (Lux) S.A. (2022- €283 B81),
+ ENil of expanses relates to recharge for management services and other charges provided by Cashel
Compliance Bidoo Limited (2022; €733, 588),
= £723,862 of expenses relates to recharge for rent, rates, sensce charges, ceaning and other stall cost
provided by Waystena (Ireland) Limsed [(2022; £326,970),
= 383,030 of expenses relating to business development recharges by Waystone Fund Services
Switzerland 5.4, (2022 €77,718),
+ €Nl of expenses relating to business development services provided by Waystone Governance USA
Lirmitedt [2022: €169,260),
= E£31.554 896 of expenses relating to finance, legal, IT, merger and acquisition costs and performance and
developmen costs provided by Sigma Irish Acquico Limited (2022; €755,083),
+« €Nl of expenses relating to Global COE Allecation from Waysione Governance (Cayman) Limited
(2022: €40,345),
«  €571,319 of expenses relates to technology and licence costs provided by Waysione Holdings (Lux)
Sarl (2022 €Nil),
« €163,837 of revenue relating to support staff to Waystone Governance Limited (2022: €Nil). and
. S;EI of revenue relating o support staff to Waystone Investment Management (IE) Limited (2022
T16),

Includied in note 12 are the follewing balances due from Group comganies:

= Waystone Governance [UK) Limited of €N (2022 €150,409),
Waystone Fund Management (IE) Limited of €1909,017 (2022 €262 658),
Wiystcne Comporate Services (lux) Limited €10,286 (2022 €Nil),
Waystone Corporate Services (IE) Limited of €233 (2022 owed o Growp by €4,681),
Waysione {Irefand) Limited of €£28,755 (2022 owed to Group by €257,731),
Link Adrrinisiration [reland) Lid €341 866 (2022 €M),
King MedCo Lid €10,452 (2022 €Nil),
King DebtCo Lid €2,023 (2022; €Nil),
King BidCo Lid €332,028 (2022: €Nil),
KEBA Fund Consulting SA €143 [2022; €Nl),
KB Associatas Consulting Limited €83, 889 (2022 €Nil), and
Cliften Fund Consulting Lirded €530, 855 (2022 €M),

& & & 8 &8s 88
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Waystone Management Company (IE) Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2023

16. Related party transactions and controlling party jcontinued)

Transactions with group companles (continued)
Includied in note 14 are the follewing balancas cwed 1o Group companies:

+  Waystone Management Company (Lux) 5.4 of €210,981 (2022; €137,734),
‘Waystcna Investment Managemant (IE) Limied of €458, 988 (2022: €80,532),
Waystond Fund Services (Switzerand) S.A. of €Ml (2022: €77 801),
Waystone Compliance Solutions (US) (Tean} of €2 605 (2022: €M),
Waystone Compliance Salutions (UK) CCL of €8,422 (2022 €Nil),

‘Waystons Compliance Solutions (Middle East) Limited of €18,037 (2022 €29,080),
Waystone Centralised Services (|E) Limited of €2 750,726 (2022 €87,684),
‘Waystone Cagpital Solutions (LK) Limited of €182 756 (2022 €100,471),

Waystons Asset Management Limited of €Nl (2022: €811),

Sigma Irtsh Acquico Limited of €210,576 (2022 €258.570),

King TepGo Lid of €11,403 (2022; €Nil), and

KB Aszsociates UK (LLP) of €1,004 187 (2022 €Mil).

L L L L

Ky managemen! parsonnal CoOmpaTEation

The Directors' remuneration disclosed in note § represents the total compensation paid 1o key managament
personnel. There are no share-based payment made o any of the directors dunng the financial year (2022
€145 E15)

Qther releled pady ransachons

Direciors’ reruneration and transactions ane discloged in note 9, Admingirative expenses ralaling 10 sarvices
provided by oiher Company eompanies are disclosed in note 5. Plaase alsa refar to nole 14 for amaunts payable
to group comganies, The Company Secretary held shares in olher Group companies af the wider Waysione
Group a1 31 Decernbear 2023,

17.  Financial commitments and obligations

Th Directors are not aware of any matarial financial ebligations entered inlo dwing the current financial year
which hawe not been adequately reflected in the financial statemants,

18, Indemnifications

In the nommal cowrse of business, the Company enters inlo conlracts that contain a vanety of representations,
warranties and cbligations which provide general indermnibications, The Company's Maxsmium exposure under
these arrangements is unknown as this would invalve fture claims that may b2 made against the Company that
hawe not yel cccumed. However, based on expenience, the Company expects the risk of loss 1o be remate and
has professional indemnity insurance in place to mitgate these risks. Liabiliies incurred may or may not be

covered by the Company's professional indemnity insuranca.
19.  Contingent Hability

Thia Company has regulatory, contractual, and other duties and cbligations ansing in the ordinary course of its
business. In its capacity as General Pannes 1o invesiment limited partnerships (or “Parnerships™), the Company
is kiable for the debts and obligations of the Patnerships where the Pannerships have insufficient propery to
el its debls and obligations, Thess ane in the nature of contingent kabiliies. Such liabilities may of may not be
covered by the Company's professional indemnity insurance,

Since year-and date, the Company is angaged in interaction wilh a third-party vendor that may lead to a liability
artaing about sensces provided before the financial year-end 2023, As of the date of approval of these financial
slalements, any possible cbhgation (if any) = uncenain and cannol be measured with sufficient reliability. Mo
separale disclosure is made of the deteils of such proceedings, or any related recovenss, s 10 do 80 could
seriously prejudice the position of the Company.

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, no provisions has been made in these financial statements for such
contingent labiliies and such contingent liabilites have been disclosed by way of this note only.
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Waystone Management Company (IE) Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2023

20. Capital management

Th Company is subject to extarnally imposed minimum capial reguiremants by the CBI and thasa are reviewsd

on a quartery basis by the senker managemeant within the Company and the Board. The Company's regulatary
capital requirerments are considered in the bedgeting process as per regulatory guidance.

The Company's CBl minimum capital requirements ane as prescribed under the EU Capital Reguirements

Diractive (Directive 301335EL) and Regulation (EU) Mo STS2013 on prudential requirements for credit

institutions and investment firms (together, the "Capital Requirements”). The Company is required to hold the

minimum level of Capital as 561 out in legistaton at all imes and is required 10 submit cagital reburms i the Central

Bank on @ periodic basis. For the purpose of this requinement the capilal required is cash on deposa. As al the

:M of the financial yaar the Company’'s Central Bank minimum capial requirsment was €16,399,650 (2022
13,067, B70).

The Company is meating its objectives for managing capial through holding cash on deposit above the minkmem
capital requirernent at 31 Decembar 2023 of €10,082, 271 (2022- €13,237.075).

21. Financial risk management
Market risk

The Company does nod hold any investments on s Statement of Financial Position and none of the Company’s
current assets ane dirgctly affected by financial makets. Consequently, the Company has no materal manket
rigk level, and no sensativity analysis has been parformed,

Foreign exchange risk

The Company holds a significant amound of its net assats in Euro but has receivables and depesils i United
States {or “US") Dollars. The foresgn exchange risk on these US Dollar balances is kept to 8 minimwem through
regular conversions and balancing holdings in Euro equivalent amounts. This serves to minimése the matenal
foraign exchange risks. Upon review, management have determined that there are no material recefvabie
balances expesed 1o foreign exchange risk al the financial year end and therefore no sensitivity analysis has
been perdfommed

Interest rate risk
Movernents in inberest rates would nal have any malerial impact on the résulls of the busingss due 10 the natune
of cash and related investrments held. Therefore, no sensiivity analysis has been performed.

1. Financial risk management (continued)
Credit risk
A bad debt provision is recognised relation to trade receivables amounting o €55 507 (2022: €Nl At any given
timu, the Company i exposed to credit sk of the value of the trade recervables af that date. As at 31 Decembaer

2023, total trade receivables were €5,994 532 (2022° €4, 480.831). The aged analysis of trade receivables at 31
Decernber 20273 is a5 follows:

Ageing 31 Dec 2023 31 D 2022
€ €

0 - 30 days 4,298,824 1,523,076
30 = &0 days 7,184 2,262,938
B0 - 90 days 711,749 275224
40+ days 1,211,785 421,593
6,904 532° 4,480,631

*Total trade and cther receivables shown above is gross of the provision for bad debts mentioned in the
notas.

M
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Waystone Management Company (IE) Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2023

2. Business combination under commaon control

KBA Consulting Management Limitad ["KBA") undertook a mengar with Waystona Managameant Company (IE)
Limited [“WMC IE”) (the “Merger’). The Merger took effect on 28 September 2023 as a domestic menger by
scquisition as defined in Section 463 of the Companies Act 2014, As such, from the date of the Merger, all assats
and Babilities of KBA ware transfermed by opemtion of law o WMC IE, and KBA was dissolved without going inta

liguidation,

The Merger was complated as part of the Waysione Group's ongoing rationalisation of regulated entity
authehgations, This has benefits of oplimising economic, management. operational and financial siruclures
which will deliver graater efficiency in Company and Group operations and chient sanvice delivery,

Thi consideration transferred 1o effect the Menger amounted to€15 437,838 by way of a share issuance in WMC
|E to Inlermediate parent company Clifion Directors Limsed

23. Post-Statement of Financial Position events

Thiare have been no other adjusting or non-adjesting events, which requine discloswre in the financial slatemants
of tha Company.

23, Approval of financial statements

The audited fnancial statements wene approved on 30 April 2024
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Brown Brothers Harriman Trustee Services lreland Limited

2024 6,750,000 10 2,202

1995 29

IE

Waystone Investment Management (IE) Limited

2024 8,336 136

2017

Brown Brothers Harriman Fund Administration Services Ireland Limited

2024 13,300,000 20 1,375
1995 29

2024 836 1,600

2024 875 5,000
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Independent Auditor's Report to the Unitholders of Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust (or the “Trust”), which comprise
the Statement of Financial Position and the Statement of Investments as at 31 December 2023 and Statement
of Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the
financial year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, including the summary of
significant accounting policies.

Thefinancial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of the financial statementsisIrish
law and FRS 102 “ The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland”
(Generally Accepted Accounting Practice in Ireland).

In our opinion, the Trust's financial statements:

give atrue and fair view in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Practicein Ireland of the
assets, liabilities and financial position of the Trust as at 31 December 2023 and of its financia
performance and cash flows for the financial year then ended; and

have been properly prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Unit Trusts Act 1990.

Basisfor opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (Ireland) (or “1SAs
(Ireland)”) and applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the *
Responsibilities of the auditor for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Trust in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statementsin Ireland, including the Ethical Standard for Auditors (Ireland) issued by the Irish
Auditing and Accounting Supervisory Authority (or “IAASA"), and the ethical pronouncements established
by Chartered Accountants Ireland, applied as determined to be appropriate in the circumstances for the Trust.
We have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilitiesin accordance with these requirements. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide abasis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the Directors of the Manager's (or the
“Directors”) use of going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statementsis

appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events
or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Trust’s ability to continue
asagoing concern for aperiod of at least twelve months from the date when the financial statements are
authorised for issue.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the manager with respect to going concern are described in the
relevant sections of this report.
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Other information

Other information comprises information included in the annual report, other than the financial statements
and the auditor’s report thereon, such as the Management and Administration, the Investment Manager’'s
Report, the Statement of Manager's Responsibilities, the Depositary’s Report and the unaudited appendices.
The Directors are responsible for the other information. Our opinion on the financial statements does not
cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility isto read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we
identify such material inconsistenciesin the financial statements, we are required to determine whether there
isamaterial misstatement in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact.

Responsibilities of the Directors and those charged with governance for the financial Statements

As explained more fully in the Statement of Manager's Responsihilities, the Directors are responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements which give atrue and fair view in accordance with Generally
Accepted Accounting Practicein Ireland, including FRS 102, and for such internal control asthey determine
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
dueto fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Directors are responsible for assessing the Trust's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the Directors either intends to liquidate the Trust or to cease operations,
or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Trust's financial reporting process.
Responsibilities of the auditor for the audit of the financia statements

The auditor’ s objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statementsasa
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes their opinion. Reasonable assurance isahigh level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with | SAs (Ireland) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs (Ireland), the auditor will exercise professional judgment and

maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. The auditor will also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for their opinion. Therisk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Trust’'s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonabl eness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Trust’s ability to continue as a going concern. If they
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, they are required to draw attention in the auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify their
opinion. Their conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of the auditor's
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Trust to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves atrue and fair view.

The auditor communicates with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that may be identified during the audit.

The purpose of our audit work and to whom we owe our responsibilities

This report is made solely to the Trust's unitholders, as a body, in accordance with the agreed scope of our
engagement. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Trust’s unitholders those
matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’ s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Trust and the Trust’s
unitholders as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

John Glennon

For and on behalf of

Grant Thornton

Chartered Accountants & Statutory Audit Firm
13-18 City Quay

Dublin 2

Date 22 May 2024
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Independent auditor's report to the members of Waystone Management Company (IE) Limited
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Waystone Management Company (IE) Limited (or the
“Company”), which comprise the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income, the
Statement of Financial Position, the Statement of Changes in Equity, and the Statement of Cash Flows for
the financial year ended 31 December 2023, and the related notes to the financial statements, including the
summary of significant accounting policies.

Thefinancial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of the financial statementsisIrish
law and International Financial Reporting Standards (or “1FRS") as adopted by the European Union.

In our opinion, the Company's financial statements:

give atrue and fair view in accordance with IFRS as adopted by the European Union of the assets,
liabilities and financia position of the Company as at 31 December 2023 and of its financial
performance and cash flows for the financia year then ended; and

have been properly prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2014.

Basisfor opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (Ireland) (or “1SAs
(Ireland)™) and applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
'Responsihilities of the auditor for the audit of the financial statements' section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statementsin Ireland, including the Ethical Standard for Auditors (Ireland) issued by the Irish
Auditing and Accountancy Supervisory Authority (or “IAASA”), and the ethical pronouncements
established by Chartered Accountants Ireland, applied as determined to be appropriate in the circumstances
for the Company. We have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilitiesin accordance with these requirements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the Board of Directors' (or the "Directors") use
of going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statementsis appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events
or

conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue
as agoing concern for a period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial statements are
authorised for issue.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the Directors with respect to going concern are described in
the relevant sections of this report.
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Other information

Other information comprises information included in the annual report, other than the financial statements
and the Auditor's report thereon, including the Directors Report and the Directors Responsibility Statement.
The Directors are responsible for the other information. Our opinion on the financial statements does not
cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. In connection with our audit of the financial statements,
our responsibility isto read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements, or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

If we identify such material inconsistencies in the financial statements, we are required to determine whether
there isamaterial misstatement in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other
information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Matters on which we are required to report by the Companies Act 2014

We have obtained al the information and explanations which we consider necessary for the purposes of
our audit.

In our opinion the accounting records of the Company were sufficient to permit the financial statements
to be readily and properly audited.

The financial statements are in agreement with the accounting records.

In our opinion the information given in the Directors' report is consistent with the financial statements.
Based solely on the work undertaken in the course of our audit, in our opinion, the Directors' report has
been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2014.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

Based on our knowledge and understanding of the Company and its environment obtained in the course of
the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the Directors' report. Under the Companies Act
2014 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion, the disclosures of Directors remuneration and
transactions specified by sections 305 to 312 of the Companies Act 2014 have not been made. We have no
exceptions to report arising from this responsibility.

Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the financia statements

As explained more fully in the Directors' Responsibilities Statement, those charged with governance are
responsible for the preparation of the financial statements which give atrue and fair view in accordance with
IFRS as adopted by the European Union, and for such internal control as they determine necessary to enable
the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, those charged with governance are responsible for assessing the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company
or to cease operations, or has no redlistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company's financia reporting process.
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Responsibilities of the auditor for the audit of the financial statements

The Auditor's objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes their opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with | SAs (Ireland) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with |SAs (Ireland), the auditor will exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. The auditor will also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for their opinion. Therisk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company's interna control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by those charged with governance.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If
they conclude that a material uncertainty exists, they are required to draw attention in the Auditor's
report to the related disclosuresin the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify their opinion. Their conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of the
Auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a
going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves atrue and fair view.

The Auditor communicates with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficienciesin internal
control that may be identified during the audit.

The purpose of our audit work and to whom we owe our responsibilities

This report is made solely to the Company's members, as a body, in accordance with section 391 of the
Companies Act 2014. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company's members
those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest
extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Company and
the Company's members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Sarah Bradley

For and on behalf of

Grant Thornton Chartered Accountants & Statutory Audit Firm
13-18 City, Quay, Dublin 2

Ireland

Date: 30 April 2024
289/290



EDINETOOOO
OO000oOO00o0DO000Do00D00o0DO000DO0o0no(Ess?72)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

290/290



	表紙
	本文
	第一部ファンド情報
	第１ファンドの状況
	１ファンドの性格
	（１）ファンドの目的及び基本的性格
	（２）ファンドの沿革
	（３）ファンドの仕組み
	（４）ファンドに係る法制度の概要
	（５）開示制度の概要
	（６）監督官庁の概要

	２投資方針
	（１）投資方針
	（２）投資対象
	（３）運用体制
	（４）分配方針
	（５）投資制限

	３投資リスク
	４手数料等及び税金
	（１）申込手数料
	（２）買戻し手数料
	（３）管理報酬等
	（４）その他の手数料等
	（５）課税上の取扱い

	５運用状況
	（１）投資状況
	（２）投資資産
	①投資有価証券の主要銘柄
	②投資不動産物件
	③その他投資資産の主要なもの

	（３）運用実績
	①純資産の推移
	②分配の推移
	③収益率の推移

	（４）販売及び買戻しの実績


	第２管理及び運営
	１申込（販売）手続等
	２買戻し手続等
	３受益証券の転換
	４受益証券の譲渡
	５資産管理等の概要
	（１）資産の評価
	（２）保管
	（３）信託期間
	（４）計算期間
	（５）その他

	６受益者の権利等
	（１）受益者の権利等
	（２）為替管理上の取扱い
	（３）本邦における代理人
	（４）裁判管轄等


	第３ファンドの経理状況
	１財務諸表
	（１）貸借対照表
	（２）損益計算書
	（３）投資有価証券明細表等

	２ファンドの現況
	純資産額計算書


	第４外国投資信託受益証券事務の概要

	第二部特別情報
	第１管理会社の概況
	１管理会社の概況
	２事業の内容及び営業の概況
	３管理会社の経理状況
	（１）貸借対照表
	（２）損益計算書

	４利害関係人との取引制限
	５その他

	第２その他の関係法人の概況
	１名称、資本金の額及び事業の内容
	２関係業務の概要
	３資本関係

	第３投資信託制度の概要
	第４参考情報
	第５その他
	別紙


	監査報告書

